ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT PROCESS FINAL BASIC ASSESSMENT REPORT

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE DEA REF: 14/12/16/3/3/1/1351

FINAL BASIC ASSESSMENT REPORT JULY 2015

Prepared for:

Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd (a juwi Renewable Energies (Pty) Ltd initiative) 7 Walter Sisulu Avenue Foreshore Cape Town 8001

juwi

Prepared by:

Savannah Environmental Pty Ltd

FIRST FLOOR, BLOCK 2 5 WOODLANDS DRIVE OFFICE PARK CNR WOODLANDS DRIVE & WESTERN SERVICE ROAD, WOODMEAD, GAUTENG P.O. BOX 148, SUNNINGHILL, 2157 TELEPHONE: +27 (O)11 656 3237 FACSIMILE : +27 (O)86 684 0547 EMAIL : INFO@SAVANNAHSA.COM





environmental affairs

Department: Environmental Affairs REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

(For official use only)

File Reference Number:
Application Number:
Date Received:

14/12/16/3/3/1/135	1
--------------------	---

Basic assessment report in terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations, 2010, promulgated in terms of the National Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998), as amended.

Kindly note that:

- 1. This **basic assessment report** is a standard report that may be required by a competent authority in terms of the EIA Regulations, 2010 and is meant to streamline applications. Please make sure that it is the report used by the particular competent authority for the activity that is being applied for.
- 2. This report format is current as of **1** August 2014. It is the responsibility of the applicant to ascertain whether subsequent versions of the form have been published or produced by the competent authority
- The report must be typed within the spaces provided in the form. The size of the spaces provided is not necessarily indicative of the amount of information to be provided. The report is in the form of a table that can extend itself as each space is filled with typing.
- 4. Where applicable tick the boxes that are applicable in the report.
- 5. An incomplete report may be returned to the applicant for revision.
- 6. The use of "not applicable" in the report must be done with circumspection because if it is used in respect of material information that is required by the competent authority for assessing the application, it may result in the rejection of the application as provided for in the regulations.
- 7. This report must be handed in at offices of the relevant competent authority as determined by each authority.
- 8. No faxed or e-mailed reports will be accepted.
- 9. The signature of the EAP on the report must be an original signature.
- 10. The report must be compiled by an independent environmental assessment practitioner.
- 11. Unless protected by law, all information in the report will become public information on receipt by the competent authority. Any interested and affected party should be provided with the information contained in this report on request, during any stage of the application process.
- 12. A competent authority may require that for specified types of activities in defined situations only parts of this report need to be completed.
- 13. Should a specialist report or report on a specialised process be submitted at any stage for any part of this application, the terms of reference for such report must also be submitted.
- 14. Two (2) colour hard copies and one (1) electronic copy of the report must be submitted to the competent authority.
- 15. Shape files (.shp) for maps must be included in the electronic copy of the report submitted to the competent authority.

July 2015

PROJECT DETAILS

DEA Reference No.	:	14/12/16/3/3/1/1351
Title	:	Environmental Assessment Process Final Basic Assessment Report: Proposed 132kV Power Line associated with the Castle Wind Energy Facility on a site near De Aar, Northern Cape Province
Authors	:	Savannah Environmental John von Mayer Karen Jodas
Client	:	Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd (A juwi Renewable Energies (Pty) Ltd initiative)
Report Status	:	Final Basic Assessment Report

When used as a reference this report should be cited as: Savannah Environmental (2015) Proposed 132kV Power line associated with the Castle Wind Energy Facility on a site near De Aar, Northern Cape Province

COPYRIGHT RESERVED

This technical report has been produced for Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited. The intellectual property contained in this report remains vested in Savannah Environmental and Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited. No part of the report may be reproduced in any manner without written permission from Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited or Savannah Environmental (Pty) Ltd.

July 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

	PAG	
PROJ	ECT DETAILS	Ι
TAB	LE OF CONTENTS	Ι
SUM	MARY AND OVERVIEW OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT	3
1.1.	REQUIREMENTS FOR A BASIC ASSESSMENT PROCESS	6
1.2.	DETAILS OF ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT PRACTITIONER AND EXPERTISE TO CONDUCT TH	ΗE
	BASIC ASSESSMENT PROCESS	6
DRA	FT BASIC ASSESSMENT REPORT FOR REVIEW	8
SEC	FION A: ACTIVITY INFORMATION	9
1.	PROJECT DESCRIPTION	9
2.	LISTED ACTIVITIES 1	.2
3.	FEASIBLE AND REASONABLE ALTERNATIVES 1	.3
4.	SITE ACCESS	.8
5.	LOCALITY MAP 1	.8
6.	LAYOUT/ROUTE PLAN	.8
7.	SENSITIVITY MAP	.9
8.	SITE PHOTOGRAPHS1	.9
9.	FACILITY ILLUSTRATION	20
10.	ACTIVITY MOTIVATION	20
11.	APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, POLICIES AND/OR GUIDELINES	28
12.	WASTE, EFFLUENT, EMISSION AND NOISE MANAGEMENT	12
13.	WATER USE 4	4
14.	ENERGY EFFICIENCY	15
SEC	TION B: SITE/AREA/PROPERTY DESCRIPTION4	6
1.	GRADIENT OF THE SITE	ŀ7
2.	LOCATION IN LANDSCAPE	8
3.	GROUNDWATER, SOIL AND GEOLOGICAL STABILITY OF THE SITE	8
4.	GROUNDCOVER	19
5.	SURFACE WATER	19
6.	LAND USE CHARACTER OF SURROUNDING AREA	50
7.	CULTURAL/HISTORICAL FEATURES	51
8.	SOCIO-ECONOMIC CHARACTER	51
9.	BIODIVERSITY	54
SEC	FION C: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION5	9
1.	Advertisements and Notice	59
5.	DETERMINATION OF APPROPRIATE MEASURES	59
6.	ISSUES RAISED BY INTERESTED AND AFFECTED PARTIES	50
7.	COMMENTS AND RESPONSE REPORT	50
8.	AUTHORITY PARTICIPATION	50
9.	CONSULTATION WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS	51
SEC	FION D: IMPACT ASSESSMENT6	2

1.	IMPACTS THAT MAY RESULT FROM THE PLANNING AND DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION	AL,
	DECOMMISSIONING AND CLOSURE PHASES	62
2.	ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT	82
SECT	ION E: RECOMMENDATION OF PRACTITIONER	88
SECT	ION F: APPENDICES	91

List of Table

Table 1:	Description	of the listed a	ictivities as	sociated wit	h the pr	oject	 12
Table 2:	Legislation,	policies and/	or guideline	es applicable	e to the	project: .	 29

List of Appendices

Appendix A: Maps

- » Appendix A1: A3 Locality Map
- » Appendix A2: Layout/Route Plan
- » Appendix A3: Sensitivity Map
- » Appendix A4: Co-ordinates taken every 250 meters along the route for each alternative alignment

Appendix B: Photographs

Appendix C: Facility illustration(s)

Appendix D: Specialist reports (including terms of reference)

- » Appendix D1: Heritage Impact Assessment Report
- » Appendix D2: Social Impact Assessment Report
- » Appendix D3: Ecological Impact Assessment Report
- » Appendix D4: Bird Impact Assessment Report
- » Appendix D5: Visual Impact Assessment Report

Appendix E: Public Participation

- » Appendix E1: Advert & Site Notice
- » Appendix E2: Key Stakeholders Correspondence
- » Appendix E3: Authority & Organ of States Correspondence
- » Appendix E4: List of registered I&AP's
- » Appendix E5: Comments and Response Report
- » Appendix E6: Minutes of Meetings
- » Appendix E7: Comments Received

Appendix F: Impact Assessment

Appendix G: Environmental Management Programme (EMPr)

Appendix H: Details of EAP and Expertise

Appendix I: Specialist's Declaration of Interest

SUMMARY AND OVERVIEW OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT

Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited is proposing to establish the Castle Wind Energy Facility and associated infrastructure on a site located on Portion 12 of Farm 165 (Vendussie Kuil), Portion 13 of Farm 165 (Vendussie Kuil) and the Remaining Extent of Portion 0 of Farm 8 (Knapdaar). The proposed site is located within the Emthanjeni Local Municipality, ~28 km north-east of De Aar and ~22 km south-west of Philipstown. The purpose of the proposed wind energy facility will be to generate electricity to be fed into the National electricity grid. The entire facility would consist of up to 31 wind turbines with supporting infrastructure.

An Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility has been conducted under the following DEA reference number: (**14/12/16/3/3/2/278**) and resulted in a positive Environmental Authorisation on 08 May 2015

In order to evacuate the power from the Castle Wind Energy Facility into the Eskom grid, the construction of a 132kV power line will be required. This Basic Assessment Report addresses the proposed grid connection options associated with this wind energy facility, and should be read in conjunction with the above mentioned Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility. Two options are being considered for the grid connection of this wind energy facility (Refer to Figure 1). Since the point of connection is dependent on where Eskom states capacity is available both Alternative 1 and 2B are requested.

- Connect the on-site substation to the newly constructed Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital Substation), near De Aar via 132 kV overhead power line. The power line will have a 36m servitude located within the 100m corridor assessed as part of this report and will be approximately 20-25 kilometres in length. <u>This is referred to as Alternative 1.</u>
- Connect the proposed on-site substation directly to the existing Hydra Substation via a new 132kV power line. The power line will have a 36m servitude located within the 100m corridor assessed as part of this report and will be approximately 20-25 kilometres in length. The following two power line routes alternative were considered:
 - » Alternative 2A is the construction of a 132kV power line (~24.22km) to connect the proposed on-site substation within the wind energy facility directly to the existing 400kV Hydra Substation.
 - Alternative 2B is the construction of a 132kV power line (~24.42km) to connect the proposed on-site substation within the wind energy facility directly to the existing 400kV Hydra Substation.

The following properties will be affected by the construction of Alternatives 1 and Alternative 2 by the proposed power line:

» Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Slingers Hoek 2 (Alternative 1, 2A & 2B)

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report July 2015

- » Portion 2 of the Farm Slingers Hoek 2 (Alternative 1 & 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Maatjes Fountain 1 (Alternative 1)
- » Portion 3 of the Farm Maatjes Fountain 1 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 3 of the Farm Paarde Valley 145 (Alternative 1)
- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Jakhalsfontein 146 (Alternative 1)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Jakhalsfontein 146 (Alternative 1)
- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Carolus Poort 3 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 8 of the Farm Carolus Poort 3 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 9 of the Farm Carolus Poort 3 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Remaining Extent of the Farm Vetlaagte 4 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Wag N Bietjie 137 Annex C (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Wag N Bietjie 137 Annex C (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 13 of the Farm Vandussie Kuil 165 (Alternative 1, 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 12 of the Farm Vandussie Kuil 165 (Alternative 1, 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 3 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 0 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5 (Alternative 2A & 2B)



Figure 1: Locality map showing the grid connection alternatives for the proposed 132kV power line associated with the Castle Wind Energy Facility on a site near De Aar, Northern Cape Province

1.1. **Requirements for a Basic Assessment Process**

In terms of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations published in terms of Section 24(5) of the National Environmental Management Act (NEMA, Act No. 107 of 1998), authorisation is required from the National Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA), in consultation with the Northern Cape Department of Environment and Nature Conservation (DENC), for the establishment of the proposed power line. In terms of sections 24 and 24D of NEMA, as read with the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations of GNR543 - GNR546, a Basic Assessment process is required for the proposed project.

The nature and extent of the proposed project are explored in more detail in this Basic Assessment Report. This report has been compiled in accordance with the requirements of the EIA Regulations and includes details of the activity description; the site, area and property description; the public participation process; the impact assessment; and the recommendations of the Environmental Assessment Practitioner. The Basic Assessment process forms part of the feasibility studies for a proposed project and will inform the final design process. Comprehensive, independent environmental studies are required in accordance with the EIA Regulations to provide the competent authority with sufficient information in order to make an informed decision.

Details of Environmental Assessment Practitioner and Expertise to 1.2. **Conduct the Basic Assessment Process**

Savannah Environmental was contracted by Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd as the independent environmental assessment practitioners (EAP) to undertake the Basic Assessment process for the proposed power line. Neither Savannah Environmental, nor any of its specialist sub-consultants on this project are subsidiaries of, or are affiliated to Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd. Furthermore, Savannah Environmental does not have any interests in secondary developments that may arise out of the authorisation of the proposed project.

Savannah Environmental is a specialist environmental consultancy which provides a holistic environmental management service, including environmental assessment and planning to ensure compliance with relevant environmental legislation. Savannah Environmental benefits from the pooled resources, diverse skills and experience in the environmental field held by its team that has been actively involved in undertaking environmental studies for a wide variety of projects throughout South Africa and neighbouring countries. Strong competencies have been developed in project management of environmental processes, as well as strategic environmental assessment and compliance advice, and the assessment of environmental impacts, the identification of environmental management solutions and mitigation/risk minimising measures.

The Savannah Environmental team has considerable experience in environmental impact assessments and environmental management, and have been actively involved in undertaking environmental studies, for a wide variety of projects throughout South Africa, including those associated with electricity generation and transmission.

The EAPs from Savannah Environmental who are responsible for this project are:

- » John von Mayer a registered Professional Natural Scientist and the principal author of this report. He holds an Honours Bachelor of Science degree in Environmental Science and has 7 years of experience in environmental management and environmental impact assessment.
- » Tebogo Mapinga is a Senior Environmental Consultant. She holds a BSc degree with 8 years of experience in the environmental field in both public and private sectors. Her competencies lie in environmental impact assessments, compliance monitoring and public participation for small and large scale projects. She is currently in the process of completing her honours degree in Environmental Management.
- » Karen Jodas a registered Professional Natural Scientist and holds a Master of Science degree. She has 18 years of experience consulting in the environmental field. Her key focus is on strategic environmental assessment and advice; management and co-ordination of environmental projects, which includes integration of environmental studies and environmental processes into larger engineering-based projects and ensuring compliance to legislation and guidelines; compliance reporting; the identification of environmental management solutions and mitigation/risk minimising measures; and strategy and guideline development. She is currently responsible for the project management of EIAs for several renewable energy projects across the country.

Savannah Environmental has gained extensive knowledge and experience on potential environmental impacts associated with electricity generation and distribution projects through their involvement in related EIA processes. Savannah Environmental has completed the EIA process and received environmental authorisations for numerous power line infrastructure projects across the country.

Curricula vitae for the Savannah Environmental project team are included in **Appendix H**.

July 2015

REVIEW OF DRAFT BASIC ASSESSMENT REPORT

A Draft Basic Assessment Report was prepared by Savannah Environmental in order to assess the potential environmental impacts associated with the construction of a 132kV power line that will be required to connect the proposed on-site substation within the Castle Wind Energy Facility to the electricity grid.

This process was undertaken in support of an application for environmental authorisation to the National Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA).

The draft Basic Assessment report was available for public review at the following locations from 7 May 2015 to 15 June 2015:

- De Aar Public Library 21 Station Street, De Aar ≫
- Phandulwazi Library Nanzwakazi Location, Hlithani Street, De Aar ≫
- Emthanjeni Local Municipality Offices 45 Voortrekker Street, De Aar ≫
- Frans Jooste Library Bree Street, Philipstown ≫
- Renosterberg Local Municipality Green Street, Philipstown ≫
- www.savannahsa.com **»**

SECTION A: ACTIVITY INFORMATION

Has a specialist been consulted to assist with the completion of this **YES** section?

YES × NO

If YES, please complete the form entitled "Details of specialist and declaration of interest" for the specialist appointed and attach in Appendix I.

All specialist declarations are attached in Appendix I.

1. Project Description

a) Describe the project associated with the listed activities applied for

OVERVIEW OF THE PROJECT

Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited is proposing to establish the Castle Wind Energy Facility and associated infrastructure on a site located on Portion 12 of Farm 165 (Vendussie Kuil), Portion 13 of Farm 165 (Vendussie Kuil) and the Remaining Extent of Portion 0 of Farm 8 (Knapdaar). The proposed site is located within the Emthanjeni Local Municipality, ~28 km north-east of De Aar and ~22 km south-west of Philipstown. The purpose of the proposed wind energy facility will be to generate electricity to be fed into the National electricity grid. The entire facility would consist of up to 31 wind turbines with supporting infrastructure.

An Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility has been conducted under the following DEA reference number: (14/12/16/3/3/2/278) and resulted in a positive Environmental Authorisation on 08 May 2015.

In order to evacuate the power from the Castle Wind Energy Facility into the Eskom grid, the construction of a 132kV power line will be required. This Basic Assessment Report addresses the proposed grid connection options associated with this wind energy facility, and should be read in conjunction with the above mentioned Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility. The following two options are being considered for the grid connection of this wind energy facility (Refer to Figure 1). <u>Since the point of connection is dependent on where Eskom states capacity is available both options 1 and 2 are requested</u>:

- Connect the on-site substation to the newly constructed Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital Substation), near De Aar via 132 kV overhead power line. The power line will have a 36m servitude located within the 100m corridor assessed as part of this report and will be approximately 20-25 kilometres in length; or
- Connect the proposed on-site substation directly to the existing the Hydra Substation via a new 132kV power line. The power line will have a 36m servitude located within the 100m corridor assessed as part of this report and will be approximately 20-25 kilometres in length The following two power line routes alternative were considered:
 - Alternative 2A is the construction of a 132kV power line (~24.22km) to connect the proposed on-site substation within the wind energy facility directly to the existing 400kV Hydra Substation.

Alternative 2B is the construction of a 132kV power line (~24.42km) to connect the proposed on-site substation within the wind energy facility directly to the existing 400kV Hydra Substation.

The following properties will be affected by the construction of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 for the proposed power line:

- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Slingers Hoek 2 (Alternative 1, 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 2 of the Farm Slingers Hoek 2 (Alternative 1 & 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Maatjes Fountain 1 (Alternative 1)
- » Portion 3 of the Farm Maatjes Fountain 1 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 3 of the Farm Paarde Valley 145 (Alternative 1)
- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Jakhalsfontein 146 (Alternative 1)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Jakhalsfontein 146 (Alternative 1)
- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Carolus Poort 3 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 8 of the Farm Carolus Poort 3 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 9 of the Farm Carolus Poort 3 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Remaining Extent of the Farm Vetlaagte 4 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Remaining Extent (P0) of the Farm Wag N Bietjie 137 Annex C(Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Wag N Bietjie 137 Annex C (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 13 of the Farm Vandussie Kuil 165 (Alternative 1, 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 12 of the Farm Vandussie Kuil 165 (Alternative 1, 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 3 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 1 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5 (Alternative 2A & 2B)
- » Portion 0 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5 (Alternative 2A & 2B)

A 100m wide corridor was assessed within which the servitude will be negotiated.

OVERVIEW OF THE STUDY AREA

Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd is proposing the construction of a wind energy facility and associated infrastructure on an identified site located near De Aar in the Northern Cape Province of South Africa. The proposed site is located within the Emthanjeni Local Municipality and Renosterberg Local Municipality, ~28 km north-east of De Aar and ~22 km south-west of Philipstown. This proposed project will be referred to as the Castle Wind Energy Facility.

The wind energy facility is proposed to be located on the following farm portions:

- » Portion 12 of Farm 165 (Vendussie Kuil);
- » Portion 13 of Farm 165 (Vendussie Kuil); and
- » The Remaining Extent of Portion 0 of Farm 8 (Knapdaar).

The three farm portions collectively make up a broader study area of approximately 3257ha (i.e. 32.6 km2) which is being considered for the siting of the wind energy facility. An Environmental Impact Assessment for the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility has been conducted under the following DEA reference number: (14/12/16/3/3/2/278) and resulted in a positive Environmental Authorisation dated 08 May 2015.

The current land-use is restricted to low intensity grazing. The proposed site is located in an area which currently has a distinct rural and natural character with very limited development in close proximity to these farms. Exceptions occur where the two northern farm portions are traversed by the "Hydra to Roodekuil 2" 220kV power line. The Hydra substation is located south-east of De Aar at a distance of approximately 23km (at the closest) from the proposed development site. A host of other power lines traverse further north-west of the site, all congregating at the Hydra substation. These are: "Hydra to Roodekuil 1" 220kV, "Beta to Hydra 1 & 2" 400kV and "Perseus to Hydra 2 & 3" 400kV. The Mulilo De Aar North Wind Project is also located ~30km to the south-west.

An additional set of power lines traverses south of the proposed development site. The closest of these are the "Hydra to Ruigtevallei 1" & "Hydra to Ruigtevallei 2" 22kV lines, located just less than 7km at the closest.

ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 132kV POWER LINE

Construction Phase

The activities associated with the construction of the 132kV power line will include site clearance only where necessary and construction of access roads (jeep tracks) to facilitate access to the site (where required).

Power lines are constructed in the following simplified sequence:

- Step 1: Determination of technically feasible route/s;
- Step 2: EIA input into route selection;
- Step 3: Negotiation of final route with affected landowners;
- Step 4: Survey of the route;
- Step 5: Determination of the conductor type;
- Step 6: Selection of best-suited conductor, towers, insulators, foundations;
- Step 7: Final design of line and placement of towers;
- Step 8: Issuing of tenders, and award of contract to construction companies;
- Step 9: Vegetation clearance where necessary and construction of access roads (where required). Jeep tracks

are usually only compacted areas which are brushcut if needed;

- Step 10:Tower pegging;
- Step 11:Construction of foundations;
- Step 12: Assembly and erection of towers;
- Step 13:Stringing of conductors;
- Step 14:Rehabilitation of disturbed area and protection of erosion sensitive areas;
- Step 15: Testing and commissioning.

Construction of the proposed power line will take approximately 12 months to complete and, on completion, will be ceded to Eskom or another suitable party to operate and maintain.

Operation Phase

The proposed power line and associated servitude and access roads will require routine maintenance work throughout the operation period. The site will be accessed using existing

roads in the area as well as via access roads (jeep tracks) established during the construction phase. Eskom or another suitable party be responsible for operations and maintenance.

Decommissioning Phase

The power line is expected to have a lifespan of more than 40 years (with maintenance) and the infrastructure would only be decommissioned once it has reached the end of its economic life, or if no longer required. Upon decommissioning, the power line would be disassembled and the components removed from site.

3. Listed Activities

 Provide a detailed description of the listed activities associated with the project as applied for;

Table 1: Description of the listed activities associated with the project

GN R.544	
GN R.544 - Item 10 (i)	The proposed 132kV power line will be
The construction of facilities or	located outside of an urban area between the
infrastructure for the transmission and	proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility on-site
distribution of electricity	substations and the existing Ilanga Lethemba
	Substation (Solar Capital Substation) or
(i) outside urban areas or industrial	Hydra Substation.
complexes with a capacity of more	
than 33 but less than 275 kilovolts.	
GN R.544 - Item 11(xi):	This activity may be triggered where the
The construction of	construction of towers and access roads along
(xi) infrastructure or structures	the power line route are proposed to be
covering 50 square metres or more	situated within 32m from a watercourse.
where such construction occurs within	
a watercourse or within 32 metres of a	
watercourse, measured from the edge	
of a watercourse, excluding where	
such construction will occur behind the	
development setback line.	
GN544 Item 18	The potential activities such as the
The infilling or depositing of any	construction of an access road may be
material of more than 5 cubic metres	required to traverse a watercourse. The
into, or the dredging, excavation,	construction of such a watercourse crossing
removal or moving of soil, sand,	may require the infilling or depositing of
shells, shell grit, pebbles or rock from	material more than 5 cubic metres or the
(i) a watercourse	dredging, excavation, removal or moving of
	soil, sand, shells, shell grit, pebbles or rock.
GN R.546	
GN R.546 - Item 13	The potential activities such as the
The construction of a road wider than	construction of an access road may be
4 metres with a reserve less than 13,5	required within the National Protected Area

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report July 2015

matrice in the Northern Cana	Expansion Strategy Focus areas
metres- in the Northern Cape	Expansion Strategy Focus areas.
ii. outside urban areas, in:	
(bb) National Protected Area	
Expansion Strategy Focus areas.	
GN R.546 - Item 13	Construction of a section of the proposed
The clearance of an area of 1 hectares	132kV power line could result in the clearance
or more of vegetation where 75% or	of 75% or more of vegetation which falls
more of the vegetation cover	within National Protected Area Expansion
constitutes indigenous vegetation- in	Strategy Focus areas.
the Northern Cape	57
ii. Outside urban areas	
(bb) National Protected Area	
Expansion Strategy Focus areas	
Expansion Strategy rocus areas.	
CN D 546 Thom 14	Construction of the proposed 12210/ newsr
GN R.540 - Item 14	Construction of the proposed 132kV power
The clearance of an area of 5 hectares	line could result in the clearance of vegetation
or more of vegetation where 75% or	of which 75% within the 36m power line
more of the vegetation cover	servitude could constitute indigenous
constitutes indigenous vegetation- in	vegetation.
the Northern Cape	
(i) All areas outside urban areas.	
constitutes indigenous vegetation- in the Northern Cape (i) All areas outside urban areas.	vegetation.

4. Feasible and Reasonable Alternatives

"*alternatives"*, in relation to a proposed activity, means different means of meeting the general purpose and requirements of the activity, which may include alternatives to—

- (a) the property on which or location where it is proposed to undertake the activity;
- (b) the type of activity to be undertaken;
- (c) the design or layout of the activity;
- (d) the technology to be used in the activity;
- (e) the operational aspects of the activity; and
- (f) the option of not implementing the activity.

Describe alternatives that are considered in this application as required by Regulation 22(2)(h) of GN R.543. Alternatives should include a consideration of all possible means by which the purpose and need of the proposed activity (NOT PROJECT) could be accomplished in the specific instance taking account of the interest of the applicant in the activity. The no-go alternative must in all cases be included in the assessment phase as the baseline against which the impacts of the other alternatives are assessed.

The determination of whether site or activity (including different processes, etc.) or both is appropriate needs to be informed by the specific circumstances of the activity and its environment. After receipt of this report the competent authority may also request the applicant to assess additional alternatives that could possibly accomplish the purpose and need of the proposed activity if it is clear that realistic alternatives have not been considered to a reasonable extent.

The identification of alternatives should be in line with the Integrated Environmental Assessment Guideline Series 11, published by the DEA in 2004. Should the alternatives include different locations and lay-outs, the co-ordinates of the different alternatives must be provided. The co-ordinates should be in **degrees, minutes and seconds**. The projection that must be used in all cases is the WGS84 spheroid in a national or local projection.

A) Site Alternatives

Alternative 1					
Alternative 2					
Alternative 3					

In the case of linear activities:

The purpose of the proposed 132kV power line is to connect the proposed on-site substation/s within the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility to the proposed grid at the Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital Substation) or alternatively to the Hydra Substation near De Aar in the Northern Cape. Only route alternatives considered are detailed below and illustrated in Figure 1.

Alternative 1: Connection to 132kV Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital Substation)

Alternative 1 is the construction of a 132kV power line (~20.80km) to connect the proposed on-site substation alternative 1 within the wind energy facility to the proposed Ilanga Lethemba Substation, which is approximately 20.80km from the Castle Wind Energy Facility.

Ro	oute Alternative 1 -	Latitude (S):	Longitude (E):
•	Starting point of the activity	30°35'39.62"	24°17'52.41"

•	Middle/Additional activity	point	of	the	30°34'08.30"	24°11'23.59"
•	End point of the ac	tivity			30°35'33.68"	24°05'17.11"

Alternative 2: Connection to the 400kV Hydra Substation

Alternative 2A is the construction of a 132kV power line (~24.22km) to connect the proposed on-site substation within the wind energy facility directly to the existing 400kV Hydra Substation

Ro	oute Alternative 2A	Latitude (S):	Longitude (E):
•	Starting point of the activity	30°35'39.62"	24°17'52.41"
•	Middle/Additional point of the activity	30°37'09.84"	24°10'10.84"
٠	End point of the activity	30°42'54.27"	24°05'28.34"

Alternative 2B is the construction of a 132kV power line (~24.42km) to connect the proposed on-site substation within the wind energy facility directly to the existing 400kV Hydra Substation

Route Alternative 2A		Latitude (S):	Longitude (E):
•	Starting point of the activity	30°35'39.62"	24°17'52.41"
•	Middle/Additional point of the activity	30°37'09.84"	24°10'10.84"
•	End point of the activity	30°42'54.27"	24°05'28.34"

For route alternatives that are longer than 500m, please provide an addendum with coordinates taken every 250 meters along the route for each alternative alignment. See Appendix A4.

B) **Layout Alternatives**

No layout alternatives have been assessed within this Basic Assessment as the placement of the power line towers and any associated access roads will be required to be in line with technical specifications as per Eskom requirements, to be detailed within the final design, as well as with specific landowner requirements. This will be negotiated within the broader 100m corridor assessed within this BAR. No routing alternatives can thus be considered as part of this BAR. The broader 100m assessed corridor also allows for the possible avoidance of environmentally sensitive areas identified through this Basic Assessment process.

Alternative 1 (preferred alternative)			
Description	Lat	Long	
	(DDMMSS)	(DDMMSS)	
Alternative 2			
Description	Lat (DDMMSS)	Long	
		(DDMMSS)	
Alternative 3			
Description	Lat (DDMMSS)	Long	
		(DDMMSS)	

C) **Technology Alternatives**

The choice of technology will be determined by Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited in consultation with Eskom, and does not significantly affect the environmental impact of the proposed development in any way. Single circuit (average maximum height of 21m) self-supporting structures will be used for the proposed power line. The line must however be constructed according to Eskom's standards and may therefore require a mixture of tower structures. No technology alternatives can thus be considered as part of this BAR. Facility illustrations are attached in Appendix C.

Alternative 1 (preferred alternative)	
Alternative 2	
Alternative 3	

D) Other Alternatives (e.g. scheduling, demand, input, scale and design alternatives)

No other alternatives are applicable.

Alternative 1 (preferred alternative)			
Alternative 2			
Alternative 3			

E) No-Go Alternative

This is the option of not constructing the 132kV power line within the corridor proposed. This option is assessed as the "no go alternative" in this Basic Assessment Report.

Paragraphs 3 – 13 below should be completed for each alternative.

Physical Size of the Activity:

a) Indicate the physical size of the preferred activity/technology as well as alternative activities/technologies (footprints):

Alternative:	Size of the activity:
Alternative A1 ¹ (preferred activity	m ²
alternative)	
Alternative A2 (if any)	m ²
Alternative A3 (if any)	m ²

or, for linear activities:

Alternatives:	Length of the activity:
Alternative 1	± 20.80 km
Alternative 2A	± 24.22 km
Alternative 2B	± 24.42 km

b) Indicate the size of the alternative sites or servitudes (within which the above footprints will occur):

Alternative:	Size of the site/servitude:
Alternative 1	Servitude = 36m (100m wide corridor was
	assessed within which the servitude will be
	negotiated.)
Alternative 2A	Servitude = 36m (100m wide corridor was
	assessed within which the servitude will be
	negotiated.)
Alternative 2B	Servitude = 36m (100m wide corridor was
	assessed within which the servitude will be
	negotiated.)

¹ "Alternative A." refer to activity, process, technology or other alternatives.

5. Site Access

Does ready access to the site exist?

If NO, what is the distance over which a new access road will be built

YES ×	NO
	m

Describe the type of access road planned:

Access to the project site will be from existing farm roads in the area and via access roads established during the construction phase.

Include the position of the access road on the site plan and required map, as well as an indication of the road in relation to the site.

6. Locality Map

An A3 locality map must be attached to the back of this document, as Appendix A. The scale of the locality map must be relevant to the size of the development (at least 1:50 000. For linear activities of more than 25 kilometres, a smaller scale e.g. 1:250 000 can be used. The scale must be indicated on the map.). The map must indicate the following:

- an accurate indication of the project site position as well as the positions of the alternative sites, if any;
- indication of all the alternatives identified;
- closest town(s;)
- road access from all major roads in the area;
- road names or numbers of all major roads as well as the roads that provide access to the site(s);
- all roads within a 1km radius of the site or alternative sites; and
- a north arrow;
- a legend; and
- locality GPS co-ordinates (Indicate the position of the activity using the latitude and longitude of the centre point of the site for each alternative site. The co-ordinates should be in degrees and decimal minutes. The minutes should have at least three decimals to ensure adequate accuracy. The projection that must be used in all cases is the WGS84 spheroid in a national or local projection).

An A3 locality map is attached within **Appendix A1**.

7. Layout/Route Plan

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report July 2015

A detailed site or route plan(s) must be prepared for each alternative site or alternative activity. It must be attached as Appendix A to this document. The site or route plans must indicate the following:

- the property boundaries and numbers of all the properties within 50 metres of the site;
- the current land use as well as the land use zoning of the site;
- the current land use as well as the land use zoning each of the properties adjoining the site or sites;
- the exact position of each listed activity applied for (including alternatives);
- servitude(s) indicating the purpose of the servitude;
- a legend; and
- a north arrow.

A layout/route plan is attached within **Appendix A2**.

8. Sensitivity Map

The layout/route plan as indicated above must be overlain with a sensitivity map that indicates all the sensitive areas associated with the site, including, but not limited to:

- watercourses;
- the 1:100 year flood line (where available or where it is required by DWA);
- ridges;
- cultural and historical features;
- areas with indigenous vegetation (even if it is degraded or infested with alien species); and
- critical biodiversity areas.

The sensitivity map must also cover areas within 100m of the site and must be attached in Appendix A.

A sensitivity map is attached within **Appendix A3**.

9. Site Photographs

Colour photographs from the centre of the site must be taken in at least the eight major compass directions with a description of each photograph. Photographs must be attached under Appendix B to this report. It must be supplemented with additional photographs of relevant features on the site, if applicable.

Site photographs are attached within **Appendix B**.

10. Facility Illustration

A detailed illustration of the activity must be provided at a scale of at least 1:200 as Appendix C for activities that include structures. The illustrations must be to scale and must represent a realistic image of the planned activity. The illustration must give a representative view of the activity.

A facility illustration is included within **Appendix C**.

11. Activity Motivation

Motivate and explain the need and desirability of the activity (including demand for the activity):

1. Is the activity permitted in terms of the property's NO x Please explain
existing land use rights?
Environmental authorisation is required to construct the proposed 132 kV overhead power line.
The activity is a linear infrastructure that will cross various properties. A new servitude of 36m
(right of way) is required to be registered across these properties.
2. Will the activity be in line with the following?
(a) Provincial Spatial Development Framework (PSDF) YES × NO Please explain
The Northern Cape Province Spatial Development Framework (NCPSDF) makes reference to the
need to ensure the availability of inexpensive energy. The section notes that in order to
promote economic growth in the Northern Cape the availability of electricity to key industrial
users at critical localities at rates that enhance the competitiveness of their industries must be
ensured. At the same time, the development of new sources of energy through the promotion of
the adoption of energy applications that display a synergy with the province's natural resource
endowments must be encouraged. In this regard the NCPSDF includes the reference to
renewable energy resources in "the development of energy sources such as solar energy, the
natural gas fields, bio-fuels, etc., could be some of the means by which new economic
opportunity and activity is generated in the Northern Cape". The NCPSDF also highlights the
importance of close co-operation between the public and private sectors in order for the
economic development potential of the Northern Cape to be realised. The proposed project will
facilitate the connection of the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility to the electricity grid, which
will contribute towards this objective.
(b) Urban edge / Edge of Built environment for the area YES NO × Please explain
The site is located \sim 28 km north-east of De Aar and \sim 22 km south-west of Philipstown in the
Northern Cape Province. The proposed site is located outside of the urban area. The project will
therefore not compromise the urban edge.
(c) Integrated Development Plan (IDP) and Spatial
Development Framework (SDF) of the Local
Municipality (e.g. would the approval of this YES × NO Please explain
application compromise the integrity of the existing
approved and credible municipal IDP and SDF?).
The vision for the Pixley ka Seme District Municipality as set out in the IDP is to "commit

ourselves to be a developmental municipality where the quality of life of all people in the district will be improved".

In terms of the mission statement, the PKSDM sets out to achieve -

- » Efficient service delivery;
- » Optimal human and natural resource development;
- » Local economic growth and development, job creation and poverty alleviation;
- » A vibrant tourism industry and;
- » A safe, secure and community friendly environment

Key developmental challenges, objectives and strategies of relevance to the proposed development include:

LED, Tourism and Poverty Alleviation:

Key identified challenges include high levels of poverty and low skills levels; and a relatively undiversified economy, relying mainly on primary sector activities.

Key interventions would include promoting SMMEs; attracting and retaining investors in the region; development of identified development corridors; value-adding to/ beneficiation of local produce; and the promotion of tourism development. Policies/ targets aimed at addressing these challenges include:

- LED 1: Promote Local Economic Development in the region;
- LED 2: Increase SMME promotion;
- LED 4: Increased tourism promotion a Tourism Market Strategy should be compiled to attract investments and tourists;
- LED 6: Reduce employment and poverty by 50% each, respectively in the region by 2014.

HIV/ AIDS:

Key identified challenges include low awareness levels, inadequate health care facilities, including a lack of trained professionals, mobile clinics, a hospice, etc.

• Policy HIV 1 focuses on reducing the level HIV/AIDS infections amongst young men and women in the District.

Education, Youth and development:

Key identified challenges include limited or no access to higher learner institutions; lack of IT skills in the region; poor qualification and skills of the community limiting their entry to institutions of higher learning; very few training facilities in the region; and a lack of funds available to the majority of learners.

• Policy Y1 focuses on improving the well-being of young men and women, including improving access to vocational training (Y1.2).

Safety and security:

Key identified challenges include high endemic levels of family and child abuse; and high levels of alcohol abuse.

• Policy SS1 provides for the promotion of a safe and secure environment in the District.

The proposed development falls within the Emthanjeni Local Municipality. The **Emthanjeni Local Municipality's IDP (2012)** identified a number of key performance areas (KPAs). These KPAs aim to utilise existing economic strengths and opportunities by transferring these into workable programmes and projects. These programmes and projects tend to reduce the current threats, and strengthen the weaknesses in the local economic environment. The Emthanjeni Local Municipality's IDP KPAs that are relevant to the proposed energy facility include:

- » Basic Service Delivery: Energy is highlighted as one of the priority issues for the Emthanjeni Local Municipality with respect to basic services; and,
- » Local Economic Development (LED): Micro and macro-economic development and land use management are highlighted as one of the priority issues for the municipality.

Therefore the development of the wind energy facility is desirable by the local and district municipality and is aligned with the IDP's.

(d)	Approved Structure Plan of the Municipality	YES	NO×	Please explain
No Structure plan has been developed for the Emthanjeni Local Municipality.				
(e)	An Environmental Management Framework (EMF)			
	adopted by the Department (e.g. Would the approval of this application compromise the integrity of the existing environmental management priorities for the area and if so, can it be justified in terms of sustainability considerations?)	YES x		Please explain

The approval of this application will not compromise the Pixley ka Seme District Municipality Environmental Management Framework.

The power line will be supporting the renewable energy project and will indirectly contribute to clean energy generation as a sustainable resource and holds significant benefits for the local region and the country as a whole. Renewable resources generally operate from an unlimited resource base and, as such, can increasingly contribute towards a long-term sustainable energy future. The project aims at achieving the set goals for the Plan through addressing all possible environmental issues associated with the development and addressing measures to mitigate environmental issues.

(f) Any other Plans (e.g. Guide Plan)	YES x	Please explain
An Environmental Implementation Plan (EIP) was compiled by the	Northern Cape	e Province. In
order to encourage cooperative governance across departme	nts, NEMA d	calls for the
development of a national and provincial Environmental Implem	nentation Plan	is (EIPs) and
Environmental management plans (EMPs). The EIP aims to ensu	ure that land	use decision-
making is carried out using adequate available environmental resol	urce information	on in order to
ensure sustainable and appropriate environmental management to	the benefit of	its residents.
One of the set goals for the Programme is ensuring that all	environmenta	al issues are
appropriately addressed. This is achieved for this project through	ugh this Basi	c Assessment
process.		

3.	Is the land use (associated with the activity being		
	applied for) considered within the timeframe intended	YES ×	Please explain
	by the existing approved SDF agreed to by the relevant		

environmental authority (i.e. is the pro	oposed			
development in line with the projects and programmes				
Identified as priorities within the credible IDP)?				

The Pixley ka Seme District Municipality Integrated Development Plan 2013-2014 has identified Key Service Delivery as a Key Performance Area; this will be achieved through facilitating access to electricity for each consumer within the Municipality. It has also identified the need to develop a synergy between wind energy, natural gas, solar, bio-fuel and wave energy so that the energy sector can enhance competitive and comparative advantage of the Pixley ka Seme region. This proposed project will facilitate the connection of the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility to the electricity grid, which will contribute towards these objectives.

4. Does the community/area need the activity and the associated land use concerned (is it a societal priority)? (This refers to the strategic as well as local level (e.g. YES × development is a national priority, but within a specific local context it could be inappropriate.)

Please explain

The Northern Cape Provincial Spatial Development Framework 2012 Section C8.2.3, Energy Objectives, sets out the energy objectives for the Northern Cape Province. The section makes specific reference to renewable energy. Of specific relevance to the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility, the NCPSDF notes that "Renewable energy sources such as wind, solar thermal, biomass and domestic hydroelectricity are to constitute 25% of the province's energy generation capacity by 2020. Promote the development of renewable energy supply schemes. Large-scale renewable energy supply schemes are strategically important for increasing the diversity of domestic energy supplies and avoiding energy imports while minimising detrimental environmental impacts". In addition, the NCPSDF aims to "develop and institute energy supply schemes on Renewable Energy (2003)."

5.	Are the necessary services with adequate capacity		
	currently available (at the time of application), or must		
	additional capacity be created to cater for the		Diagon
	development? (Confirmation by the relevant	TES X	Please
	Municipality in this regard must be attached to the final		
	Basic Assessment Report as Appendix J)		

The proposed development does not require the use of municipal basic services throughout the entire life cycle of the project. However, during construction, potable water, water for construction purposes and chemical toilets will be sourced from the local municipalities and/or local service providers. Waste including waste water, effluent, solid waste and hazardous waste will be disposed at appropriately licensed waste disposal sites.

6. Is this development provided for in the infrastructure planning of the municipality, and if not what will the implication be on the infrastructure planning of the municipality (priority and placement of services and opportunity costs)? (Comment by the relevant Municipality in this regard must be attached to the final Basic Assessment Report as Appendix J.)



The proposed project is to be developed by a private developer (i.e. Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited) and not the municipality. It therefore does not fall within the infrastructure planning of the municipality. The project will not have any negative implications concerning infrastructure

explain

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report

		July 2015		
planning of the municipality				
7 Is this project part of a national programme to address				
an issue of national concern or importance?	YES x	Please explain		
The current electricity imbalances in South Africa highlight the sig	nificant	role that renewable		
energy can play in terms of power supplementation. Given that re	enewabl	es can generally be		
deployed in a decentralised manner close to consumers, they offer the	ne oppor	tunity for improving		
grid strength and supply quality, while reducing expensive transmis	sion and	distribution losses.		
At present, South Africa is some way off from exploiting the div	verse ga	ins from renewable		
energy and from achieving a considerable market share in the indu	ıstry. İr	n order to meet the		
long-term goal of a sustainable renewable energy industry, a targe	t of 17.8	3 GW of renewables		
by 2030 has been set by the Department of Energy (DoE) within the	ne Integ	rated Resource Plan		
(IRP) 2010 and incorporated in the REIPPP Programme. This end	ergy will	be produced from		
various renewable energy technologies including wind energy facili	ties. Tł	ne proposed project		
will facilitate the connection of the Castle Wind Energy Facility to the	electrici	ty grid. This facility		
is proposed to generate up to 140MW of electricity which will be fee	l into the	e national electricity		
grid.				
8. Do location factors favour this land use (associated with				
the activity applied for) at this place? (This relates to the	YES	NO Please explain		
contextualisation of the proposed land use on this site	×			
within its broader context.)				
The proposed power line servitude is required to be located bet	ween th	e proposed on-site		
substation/s within the wind energy facility and the grid connection	on point	(i.e. the proposed		
newly constructed Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital Subst	ation) o	r the existing Hydra		
substation). The proposed power line corridors investigated are	consider	red to be the most		
appropriate routing for this infrastructure, taking technical and	environ	mental (social and		
Diophysical) issues into consideration.	VEC			
option for this land/site?	x	NO Please explain		
The power line will connect the Castle Wind Energy Facility to the	national	electricity arid. In		
terms of Eskom's requirements, the wind energy facility is required	to con	nect to the existing		
Eskom grid either via the newly constructed Ilanga Lethemba	Substa	tion (Solar Capital		
Substation) or the existing Hydra substation. The proposed power li	ne corrio	lors investigated for		
the various alternatives are considered to be the most appropriate i	routing o	of this infrastructure		
taking technical (existing linear disturbances along the line and near	rest suita	able grid connection		
point) and environmental (social and biophysical) issues into conside	ration.	5		
The specialist studies undertaken as part of this Basic Asses	ssment	conclude that the		
development of the 132kV power line within the preferred corridor i	nvestiga	ted (Alternative 2B)		
will have environmental impacts of low overall significance.				
10. Will the benefits of the proposed land use/development	YES	NO Please explain		
outweigh the negative impacts of it?	×			
The specialist studies undertaken as part of this Basic Asses	ssment	conclude that the		
development of the 132kV power line within the preferred corridor investigated (Alternative 2B)				
will have environmental impacts of overall low significance.				
		ad England, Englished		
The penetit of constructing the power line and thereby connect the C	astie Wii	na Energy Facility to		
the electricity grid outweigns and negative aspects relating to the	construc	and associated		

loss of land. The proposed project will facilitate the connection of the Castle Wind Energy

Facility to the national grid thereby facilitating the transmission of renewable energy and the upliftment of the local community through social economic development initiatives. This will have a positive impact at a local, regional and national level.

11. Will the proposed land use/development set a precedent for similar activities in the area (local municipality)?

NO × Please explain

A precedent for renewable energy facilities, substations, and power line infrastructure has been set for the area. There are similar developments proposed in the area which have received environmental authorisations or which are in process or have been awarded preferred bidder status (refer to the table below).

Pre	oject	Applicant	Technology	DEA Ref. No	Status		
Ro	Round 1, 2 and 3 Preferred Bidder Projects						
1.	Longyuan Mulilo De Aar North Wind Energy Facility	Mulilo Renewable Energy (Pty) Ltd	Wind	12/12/20/2463/2	Authorised Preferred Bidder Round 3		
2.	Longyuan Mulilo De Aar South Wind Energy Facility	Mulilo Renewable Energy (Pty) Ltd	Wind	12/12/20/2463/1	Authorised Preferred Bidder Round 3		
3.	De Aar Solar 1 PV power project	South Africa Mainstream Renewable Power Development	Solar PV	12/12/20/2025/2	Phase 2- preferred bidder round 1 (reached COD)		
4.	Ilanga Lethemba PV Solar Energy Facility in De Aar	Solar Capital (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	12/12/20/2048/2	Authorised Phase 2 preferred bidder round 3		
5.	Ilanga Lethemba PV solar energy facility and associated infrastructure on site north East of De Aar	Solar Capital (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	12/12/20/2048/3	Authorised, Phase 3 is a preferred bidder round 2 & project under Construction		
6.	Photovoltaic solar Energy Facility on a site southeast of De Aar, Northern Cape	Mulilo Renewable Energy Solar (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	12/12/20/1673	Authorised and preferred bidder round 1		
Au	Authorised Projects						
7.	Ilanga Lethemba PV solar energy facility and associated infrastructure on site north	Solar Capital (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	12/12/20/2048/1&4	Authorised		

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report July 2015

	East of De Aar					
8.	De Aar Solar 1 PV power project	South Africa Mainstream Renewable Power Development	Solar PV	12/12/20/2025,	/1 Phase Autho	e 1 orised
9.	Inyanga Solar Energy Project 1, on the farm Riet Fountain	Islandsite Investment 519 (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	12/12/20/2497	Autho	prised
10.	Wind power generating facility near De Aar	Mulilo Renewable Energy (Pty) Ltd	Wind	12/12/20/1651	Autho	prised
11.	Solar energy facility (Phase 1-5) on a site near of De Aar	ACED Renewables De Aar,	Solar PV	12/12/20/2250,	/1-5 Autho	prised
12.	PV Plant on the farm Vetlaagte 4	Inqwaba Energy (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	14/12/16/3/3/2 /1-6	2/382 Autho	orised
13.	Photovoltaic solar Energy Facility on a site southeast of De Aar, Northern Cape	Inca De Aar Solar (Pty) Ltd	Solar PV	12/12/20/2177	Autho	prised
14.	Renosterberg Wind Farm	Renosterberg Wind Energy Company (Pty) Ltd (RWEC) in partnership with the Industrial Development Corporation of South Africa (IDC).	Wind	14/12/16/3/3/2	2/404 Autho	prised
12.	Will any perso	n's rights be	negatively aff	ected by the		
proposed activity/ies?						
Priva	ate landowners v	will be affected	by the propose	ed project. The	se landowne	ers have been
consulted by the developer and the EAP and are aware of the proposed project. The majority of						
<u>iandowners have signed servitude agreements and it is anticipated that the remaining land</u>						
edge" as defined by the local municipality?						
The	The site is located approximately 28 km north-east of De Aar and approximately 22 km south-					
west	t of Philipstown i	n the Northern (Cape Province.	The proposed si	te is located	outside of the
urba	14 Will the proposed activity (ice contribute to any of the 17 VES y Discon eveloped					
14.	14. Will the proposed activity/ies contribute to any of the 17 YES x Tube Please explain					

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report

July 2015

Strategic Integrated Projects (SIPS)?				
While the distribution notwork infractructure is not specifically seen to be a SID	the proposed			
While the distribution network infrastructure is not specifically seen to be a SIP, the proposed				
be a notantial SID (SID 8) under the National Infrastructure Dian	in is deelined to			
15 What will the benefits be to essist in general and to the legal	Diagon			
15. What will the benefits be to society in general and to the local	Please			
communities?	explain			
The proposed project will ensure continued electricity supply to the general a	rea, facilitating			
development in the larger area and supporting the objectives of the Local	ai and District			
Municipality. Snort term job opportunities will be created during the constructio	n pnase, wnich			
will help contribute toward poverty alleviation. Local economic benefits will be c	reated through			
revenue generated as a result of the wind energy facility which the power line will	connect to the			
grid. During the operation phase limited job opportunities associated with the	wind farm and			
power line will also be available.				
16. Any other need and desirability considerations related to the	Please			
proposed activity?	explain			
N/A	_			
17. How does the project fit into the National Development Plan for	Please			
2030?	explain			
By 2030, the National Development Plan aims to ensure that all South Africar	ns can attain a			
decent standard of living through the reduction of poverty, promotion of econom	ic development			
and investment in the GDP. To achieve this, South Africa has aimed to improve	e Infrastructure			
and Basic Services; Socio-economic Development; Institutional Transfor	mation; Good			
Governance and Public Participation; Financial viability and Management. As su	ich, one of the			
goals of the National Development Plan 2030 is to improve the quality of public se	ervices through			
improving housing, electricity and sanitation services. This project will contribu	te towards this			
vision since it will aid in strengthening electricity supply (through the connection	on of the wind			
energy facility to the grid) and thus improving service delivery to households in th	e area.			
18. Please describe how the general objectives of Integrated E	nvironmental			
Management as set out in section 23 of NEMA have been taken into ac	count.			
The general objectives of Integrated Environmental Management have been take	en into account			
for this Basic Assessment Report by means of identifying, predicting and evaluating the actual				
and potential impacts on the environment, socio-economic conditions and cultural heritage				
component. The risks, consequences, alternatives as well as options for mitigati	ion of activities			
have also been considered with a view to minimise negative impacts, maximise benefits, and				
promote compliance with the principles of environmental management.				
19. Please describe how the principles of environmental management	as set out in			
section 2 of NEMA have been taken into account.				
Section 2 of NEMA states that environmental management must place people and	l their needs at			
the forefront, and serve their physical, psychological, developmental, cultu	ral and social			
interests equitably. These principles of NEMA include the following:				
 » Development must be sustainable; 				
 Pollution must be avoided or minimised and remedied; 				
» Waste must be avoided or minimised, reused or recycled;				
 Negative impacts must be minimised; and 				
» Responsibility for the environmental health and safety consequences of a policy, project,				
product or service exists throughout its life cycle.				
The principles of NEMA have been considered in this assessment through comp	liance with the			

requirements of the relevant legislation in undertaking the assessment of potential impacts, as well as through the implementation of the principle of sustainable development where appropriate mitigation measures have been recommended for impacts which cannot be avoided. In addition, the successful implementation and appropriate management of this proposed project will aid in achieving the principle of minimisation of pollution and environmental degradation.

This process has been undertaken in a transparent manner and all effort has been made to involve interested and affected parties, stakeholders and relevant Organs of State such that an informed decision regarding the project can be made by the Competent Authority.

12.Applicable Legislation, Policies and/or Guidelines

List all legislation, policies and/or guidelines of any sphere of government that are applicable to the application as contemplated in the EIA regulations, if applicable:

National Environmental NEMA requires, inter alia, that: >	Ation National Department of Environmental Affairs	» The Final Basic Assessment
National Environmental » NEMA requires, inter alia, that: »	National Department of Environmental Affairs	» The Final Basic Assessment
 Management Act (Act No. * Development must be socially, environmentally, and economically sustainable. * Disturbance of ecosystems and loss of biological diversity are avoided, or, where they cannot be altogether avoided, are minimised and remedied. * A risk-averse and cautious approach is applied, which takes into account the limits of current knowledge about the consequences of decisions and actions. * EIA Regulations have been promulgated in terms of Chapter 5. Activities which may not commence without an environmental authorisation are identified within these Regulations. * In terms of S24(1) of NEMA, the potential impact on the environment associated with these listed activities must be considered, investigated, assessed and reported on to the competent authority charged by NEMA 	(DEA) Northern Cape Department of Environment and Nature Conservation (NC DENC)	Report is to be submitted to the DEA for review and decision making. DEA is the competent authority. » The NC DENC is the commenting authority.

Table 2: Legislation, policies and/or guidelines applicable to the project:

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	 environmental authorisation. » In terms of GNR 543 of 18 June 2010, a Scoping EIA Process is required to be undertaken for the proposed project. 		
National Environmental Management Act (Act No. 107 of 1998)	 A project proponent is required to consider a project holistically and to consider the cumulative effect of potential impacts. In terms of the Duty of Care provision in S28(1) the project proponent must ensure that reasonable measures are taken throughout the life cycle of this project to ensure that any pollution or degradation of the environment associated with a project is avoided, stopped or minimised. 	» DEA	 While no permitting or licensing requirements arise directly, the holistic consideration of the potential impacts of the proposed project has found application in the EIA process. The implementation of mitigation measures are included as part of the Draft EMPr and will continue to apply throughout the life cycle of the project.
National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act (Act No. 10 of 2004)	 Provides for the MEC/Minister to identify any process or activity in such a listed ecosystem as a threatening process (S53) A list of threatened and protected species has been published in terms of S56(1) - Government Gazette 29657. Three government notices have been published, i.e. GN R 150 (Commencement of Threatened and Protected Species Regulations, 2007), GN R 151 (Lists of critically 	 » DEA » DENC 	An Ecological Impact Assessment has been undertaken as part of the EIA process. A permit may be required should any listed plant species on site be disturbed or destroyed as a result of the proposed development.

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	endangered, vulnerable and protected		
	Species) and GN R 152 (Infredience of		
	» Drovides for listing throatened or		
	» Provides for insting threatened of		
	categories: critically endangered (CP)		
	endangered (EN) vulnerable (VII) or		
	protected The first national list of		
	threatened terrestrial ecosystems has		
	been gazetted together with		
	supporting information on the listing		
	process including the purpose and		
	rationale for listing ecosystems, the		
	criteria used to identify listed		
	ecosystems, the implications of listing		
	ecosystems, and summary statistics		
	and national maps of listed		
	ecosystems (National Environmental		
	Management: Biodiversity Act:		
	National list of ecosystems that are		
	threatened and in need of protection,		
	(G 34809, GN 1002), 9 December		
	2011).		
	» This Act also regulates alien and		
	invader species.		
National Environmental	» The Minister may by notice in the	» DEA	» As no waste disposal site is to
Management: Waste Act,	Gazette publish a list of waste	» NC DENC	be associated with the
2008 (Act No. 59 of 2008)	management activities that have, or		proposed project, no permit is
	are likely to have, a detrimental effect		required in this regard.
	on the environment.		» Waste handling, storage and

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	 In terms of the regulations published in terms of this Act (GN 921, 29 November 2013), a Basic Assessment or Environmental Impact Assessment is required to be undertaken for identified listed activities. Any person who stores waste must at least take steps, unless otherwise provided by this Act, to ensure that (a) The containers in which any waste is stored, are intact and not corroded or in any other way rendered unlit for the safe storage of waste; (b) Adequate measures are taken to prevent accidental spillage or leaking; (c) The waste cannot be blown away; (d) Nuisances such as odour, visual impacts and breeding of vectors do not arise; and (e) Pollution of the environment and harm to health are prevented. 		 disposal during construction and operation is required to be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of this Act. This is detailed in the EMPr for the project. The volumes of waste to be generated and stored on the site during construction of the power line will not require a waste license (provided these remain below the prescribed thresholds).
National Environmental Management: Air Quality Act (Act No. 39 of 2004)	 S18, S19 and S20 of the Act allow certain areas to be declared and managed as "priority areas" Declaration of controlled emitters (Part 3 of Act) and controlled fuels (Part 4 of Act) with relevant emission standards 	 » DEA » NC DENC 	 While no permitting or licensing requirements arise from this legislation, this Act will find application during the construction phase of the project. The Air Emissions Authority
Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
--	--	---	--
	 The Act provides that an air quality officer may require any person to submit an atmospheric impact report if there is reasonable suspicion that the person has failed to comply with the Act. Dust control regulations promulgated in November 2013 may require the implementation of a dust management plan. 		(AEL) may require the compilation of a dust management plan.
National Water Act (Act No. 36 of 1998)	 Under S21 of the act, water uses must be licensed unless such water use falls into one of the categories listed in S22 of the Act or falls under the general authorisation. In terms of S19, the project proponent must ensure that reasonable measures are taken throughout the life cycle of this project to prevent and remedy the effects of pollution to water resources from occurring, continuing, or recurring. 	 » National Department of Water Affairs » Northern Cape Department of Water Affairs 	 A water use license is required to be applied for or obtained if infrastructure (such as access roads) impacts on a wetland or watercourse (Section 21c and i). If ground or surface water is planned to be abstracted and/ or stored for use at the facility (either during construction or operation), this may also require a water use licence (Section 21a and b).
Environment Conservation Act (Act No. 73 of 1989)	 » National Noise Control Regulations (GN R154 dated 10 January 1992) 	» DEA» Local Authorities	 There is no requirement for a noise permit in terms of the legislation. A Noise Impact Assessment is required to be undertaken in accordance with

July 2015

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
			SANS 10328.
Minerals and Petroleum Resources Development Act (Act No. 28 of 2002)	 A mining permit or mining right may be required where a mineral in question is to be mined (i.e. materials from a borrow pit) in accordance with the provisions of the Act. Requirements for Environmental Management Programmes and Environmental Management Plans are set out in S39 of the Act. S53 Department of Mineral Resources: Approval from the Department of Mineral Resources (DMR) may be required to use land surface contrary to the objects of the Act in terms of section 53 of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, (Act No 28 of 2002): In terms of the Act approval from the Minister of Mineral Resources is required to ensure that proposed activities do not sterilise a mineral resource that might occur on site. 	» Department of Mineral Resources	 » If borrow pits are required for the construction of the facility, a mining permit or right is required to be obtained. » Approval in terms of S53 will be required to be obtained.
National Heritage Resources Act (Act No. 25 of 1999)	 S38 states that Heritage Impact Assessments (HIAs) are required for certain kinds of development including The construction of a road, power line, pipeline, canal or other similar linear development or barrier exceeding 300 m in 	 South African Heritage Resources Agency 	 » A Phase 1 heritage impact assessment has been undertaken as part of the EIA process. » A permit may be required should identified cultural or heritage sites on site be

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	 length; Any development or other activity which will change the character of a site exceeding 5 000 m² in extent The relevant Heritage Authority must be notified of developments such as linear developments (i.e. roads and power lines), bridges exceeding 50 m, or any development or other activity which will change the character of a site exceeding 5 000 m²; or the rezoning of a site exceeding 10 000 m² in extent. This notification must be provided in the early stages of initiating that development, and details regarding the location, nature and extent of the proposed development must be provided. Standalone HIAs are not required where an EIA is carried out as long as the EIA contains an adequate HIA component that fulfils the provisions of \$38. In such cases only those components not addressed by the EIA should be covered by the heritage component. 		required to be disturbed or destroyed as a result of the proposed development.
National Forests Act (Act No. 84 of 1998)	 In terms of S5(1) no person may cut, disturb, damage or destroy any protected tree or possess, collect, 	 » Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries 	 A permit would need to be obtained for any protected trees that are affected by the

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements		
	 remove, transport, export, purchase, sell donate or in any other manner acquire or dispose of any protected tree or any forest product derived from a protected tree, except under a license granted by the Minister to an (applicant and subject to such period and conditions as may be stipulated". » The list of protected tree species was published in GN 877 of 22 November 2013. 		 proposed project. » No protected trees were found in the study area so permits would not be required for removal of such trees. However, a permit would be required from Northern Cape Province, Department of Environment & Nature Conservation to clear natural vegetation mainly along the transmission line grid where poles would be planted. 		
National Veld and Forest Fire Act (Act 101 of 1998)	 Provides requirements for veldfire prevention through firebreaks and required measures for fire-fighting. Chapter 4 places a duty on landowners to prepare and maintain firebreaks, and Chapter 5 places a duty on all landowners to acquire equipment and have available personnel to fight fires. In terms of S12 the applicant would be obliged to burn firebreaks to ensure that should a veldfire occur on the property, that it does not spread to adjoining land. In terms of S12 the firebreak would need to be wide and long enough to have a reasonable chance of 	» Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries	 While no permitting or licensing requirements arise from this legislation, this act will find application during the operational phase of the project in terms of fire prevention and management. No protected trees were found in the study area so permits would not be required for removal of such trees. However, a permit would be required from Northern Cape Province, Department of Environment & Nature Conservation to clear natural vegetation mainly along the 		

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	 preventing the fire from spreading, not causing erosion, and is reasonably free of inflammable material. » In terms of S17, the applicant must have such equipment, protective clothing, and trained personnel for extinguishing fires. 		transmission line grid where poles would be planted.
Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act (CARA) (Act No 43 of 1983)	 Prohibition of the spreading of weeds (S5). Classification of categories of weeds & invader plants (Regulation 15 of GN R1048) & restrictions in terms of where these species may occur. Requirement & methods to implement control measures for alien and invasive plant species (Regulation 15E of GN R1048). 	» Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries	 This Act will find application during the EIA and will continue to apply throughout the life cycle of the project. In this regard, soil erosion prevention and soil conservation strategies must be developed and implemented. In addition, a weed control and management plan must be implemented. The permission of agricultural authorities will be required if the Project requires the draining of vleis, marshes or water sponges on land outside urban areas.
Hazardous Substances Act (Act No. 15 of 1973)	This Act regulates the control of substances that may cause injury, or ill health, or death due to their toxic, corrosive, irritant, strongly sensitising, or inflammable nature or the	 Department of Health 	 » It is necessary to identify and list all the Group I, II, III, and IV hazardous substances that may be on the site and in what operational context they

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	 generation of pressure thereby in certain instances and for the control of certain electronic products. To provide for the rating of such substances or products in relation to the degree of danger; to provide for the prohibition and control of the importation, manufacture, sale, use, operation, modification, disposal or dumping of such substances and products. » Group I and II: Any substance or mixture of a substance that might by reason of its toxic, corrosive etc., nature or because it generates pressure through decomposition, heat or other means, cause extreme risk of injury etc., can be declared to be Group I or Group II hazardous substance; » Group IV: any electronic product; » The use, conveyance, or storage of any hazardous substance (such as distillate fuel) is prohibited without an 		are used, stored or handled. If applicable, a license is required to be obtained from the Department of Health.
	appropriate license being in force.		
National Road Traffic Act (Act No 93 of 1996)	The Technical Recommendations for Highways (TRH 11): "Draft Guidelines for Granting of Exemption Permits for the Conveyance of Abnormal Loads and for	 Provincial Department of Transport (provincial roads) South African National 	 Abnormal load/vehicle permit will not be required to transport the various components to site for

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	other Events on Public Roads" outline the rules and conditions which apply to the transport of abnormal loads and vehicles on public roads and the detailed procedures to be followed in applying for exemption permits are described and discussed.	Roads Agency Limited (national roads)	construction.
	Legal axle load limits and the restrictions imposed on abnormally heavy loads are discussed in relation to the damaging effect on road pavements, bridges and culverts.		
	The general conditions, limitations and escort requirements for abnormally dimensioned loads and vehicles are also discussed and reference is made to speed restrictions, power/mass ratio, mass distribution and general operating conditions for abnormal loads and vehicles. Provision is also made for the granting of permits for all other exemptions from the requirements of the National Road Traffic Act and the relevant Regulations.		
	Provincial Leg	islation	
Northern Cape Nature Conservation Act (Act No. 9	 Provides inter alia for the sustainable utilisation of wild animals, aquatic 	» Northern Cape Department of	 A permit is required for any activities which involve

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
Legislation of 2009)	 Applicable Requirements biota and plants as well as permitting and trade regulations regarding wild fauna and flora within the province. In terms of this act the following section may be relevant with regards to any security fencing the development may require. Manipulation of boundary fences 19. No Person may – (a) erect, alter remove or partly remove or cause to be erected, altered removed or partly removed, any fence, whether on a common boundary or on such person's own property, in such a manner that any wild animal which as a result thereof gains access or may gain access to the property, cannot escape or is 	Relevant Authority Environment and Nature Conservation	Compliance requirements species listed under schedule 1 or 2. The DENC permit office provides an integrated permit which can be used for all provincial and Threatened or Protected Species (TOPS)- related permit requirements.
	The Act also lists protected fauna and flora under 3 schedules ranging from Specially protected (Schedule 1), protected (schedule 2) to common (schedule 3). The majority of mammals, reptiles and amphibians are listed under Schedule 2, except for listed species which are under		

Legislation	Applicable Requirements	Relevant Authority	Compliance requirements
	Schedule 1.		

13. Waste, Effluent, Emission and Noise Management

a) Solid waste management

Will the activity produce solid construction waste during the construction/initiation phase?

If YES, what estimated quantity will be produced per month?

How will the construction solid waste be disposed of (describe)?

It is anticipated that construction waste will be comprised mainly of spoil material from excavation activities as well as metal and cabling offcuts. Non-recyclable waste will be removed from site by an appropriate contractor and will be transported to the nearest registered waste disposal facility for appropriate disposal.

Where will the construction solid waste be disposed of (describe)?

In order to comply with legal requirements should there be excess solid construction waste after recycling options have been exhausted, the waste will be transported to the nearest registered waste disposal facility for appropriate disposal.

Will the activity produce solid waste during its operational phase? If YES, what estimated quantity will be produced per month?

How will the solid waste be disposed of (describe)?

If the solid waste will be disposed of into a municipal waste stream, indicate which registered landfill site will be used.

Where will the solid waste be disposed of if it does not feed into a municipal waste stream (describe)?

If the solid waste (construction or operational phases) will not be disposed of in a registered landfill site or be taken up in a municipal waste stream, then the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

Can any part of the solid waste be classified as hazardous in terms of the NEM:WA?

If YES, inform the competent authority and request a change to an application for scoping and EIA. An application for a waste permit in terms of the NEM:WA must also be submitted with this application.

NO X





Is the activity that is being applied for a solid waste handling or treatment facility?

If YES, then the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA. An application for a waste permit in terms of the NEM:WA must also be submitted with this application.

b) Liquid effluent

Will the activity produce effluent, other than normal sewage, that will be disposed of in a municipal sewage system?

If YES, what estimated quantity will be produced per month?

Will the activity produce any effluent that will be treated and/or disposed of on-site?

If YES, the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

Will the activity produce effluent that will be treated and/or disposed of at another facility?

If YES, provide the particulars of the facility:

Facility	N/A		
name:			
Contact			
person:			
Postal			
address:			
Postal			
code:			
Telephone:		Cell:	
E-mail:		Fax:	

Describe the measures that will be taken to ensure the optimal reuse or recycling of waste water, if any:

N/A



NO X



c) Emissions into the atmosphere

Will the activity release emissions into the atmosphere other that exhaust emissions and dust associated with construction phase activities?

If YES, is it controlled by any legislation of any sphere of government?

If YES, the applicant must consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

If NO, describe the emissions in terms of type and concentration:

During the construction phase, it is expected that there will be short-term dust generation and emissions from vehicles and machinery. However the dust and emissions will have a medium- to short-term duration and have limited impact in terms of extent and severity. The extent of the impact will be restricted to the power line servitude and its immediate surroundings within approximately 500m of the site. Appropriate dust suppression measures will be implemented to reduce the impacts. It is recommended that construction vehicles be regularly serviced and kept in good mechanical condition to minimise possible exhaust emissions.

d) Waste permit

Will any aspect of the activity produce waste that will require a waste permit in terms of the NEM:WA?

If YES, please submit evidence that an application for a waste permit has been submitted to the competent authority

e) Generation of noise

Will the activity generate noise?

If YES, is it controlled by any legislation of any sphere of government?

If YES, the applicant should consult with the competent authority to determine whether it is necessary to change to an application for scoping and EIA.

If NO, describe the noise in terms of type and level:

Short term noise impacts are anticipated during the construction phase of the project. It is however anticipated that the noise will be localised and contained within the construction area and its immediate surroundings. The operation phase will not generate any noise.

14. Water Use

Please indicate the source(s) of water that will be used for the activity by ticking the appropriate box(es):

			Divor		The activity
Municipal	Water beard	Croundwator	Kiver,	Othor	will not use
Municipai	water board	Groundwater	stream, uam	Other	water
			orlake		x

July 2015



. . . .

NO X

During construction, water tanks will be sourced from the municipality. (See Appendix J for municipal supply confirmation)

If water is to be extracted from groundwater, river, stream, dam, lake	
or any other natural feature, please indicate the volume that will be	litres
extracted per month:	
Does the activity require a water use authorisation (general	
authorisation or water use license) from the Department of Water	NO X
Affairs?	

If YES, please provide proof that the application has been submitted to the Department of Water Affairs.

15. Energy Efficiency

Describe the design measures, if any, which have been taken to ensure that the activity is energy efficient:

N/A

Describe how alternative energy sources have been taken into account or been built into the design of the activity, if any:

N/A

SECTION B: SITE/AREA/PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Important notes:

 For linear activities (pipelines, etc.) as well as activities that cover very large sites, it may be necessary to complete this section for each part of the site that has a significantly different environment. In such cases please complete copies of Section B and indicate the area, which is covered by each copy No. on the Site Plan.

Section B Copy No. (e.g. A):

- 2. Paragraphs 1 6 below must be completed for each alternative.
- 3. Has a specialist been consulted to assist with the completion of this section? **YES**

If YES, please complete the form entitled "Details of specialist and declaration of interest" for each specialist thus appointed and attach it in Appendix I. All specialist reports must be contained in **Appendix D**.

Property	Province	Northern Cape Province	
description/	District	Pixley Ka Seme District Municipality	
physical	Municipality		
address:	Local	Emthanjeni Local Municipality	
	Municipality		
	Ward	Ward 6	
	Number(s)		
	Farm name and	Slingers Hoek 2	
	number	Maatjes Fountain 1	
		Paarde Valley 145	
		Jakhalsfontein 146	
		Carolus Poort 3	
		Vetlaagte 4	
		Wagt En Bittje 5	
		Wag N Bietjie 137	
		Vandussie Kuil 165	
	Portion number	Remaining Extent of the Farm Slingers Hoek 2	
		Portion 2 of the Farm Slingers Hoek 2	
		Portion 1 of the Farm Maatjes Fountain 1	
		Portion 3 of the Farm Maatjes Fountain 1	
		Portion 3 of the Farm Paarde Valley 145	
		Remaining Extent of the Farm Jakhalsfontein 146	
		Potion 1 of the Farm Jakhalsfontein 146	
		Remaining Extent of the Farm Carolus Poort 3	
		Portion 8 of the Farm Carolus Poort 3	
		Portion 9 of the Farm Carolus Poort 3	

	Remaining Extent of the Farm Vetlaagte 4			
	Portion 1 of the Farm Wagt En Bittje 5			
	Remaining Extent of the Farm Wag N Bietjie Annex			
	C 137			
	Portion 1 of the Farm Wag N Bietjie Annex C 137			
	Portion 13 of the Farm Vandussie Kuil 165			
	Portion 12 of the Farm Vandussie Kuil 165			
	Portion 3 of the Farm Wagt En Bittie 5			
	Remaining Extent (Portion 0) of the Farm Wagt En			
	Bittie 5			
SG Code	C0300000000000000000000000000000000000			
	C03000000000000200002			
	C0300000000000100001			
	C0300000000000100003			
	C0570000000014500003			
	C0570000000014600000			
	C0570000000014600001			
	C030000000000300000			
	C0300000000000000008			
	C0300000000000000000000000000000000000			
	C0300000000000400000			
	C0300000000000000000000000000000000000			
	C0300000000013700000			
	C0300000000013700001			
	C0570000000016500013			
	C0570000000016500012			
	C03000000000000003			
	C03000000000000000000			

Where a large number of properties are involved (e.g. linear activities), please attach a full list to this application including the same information as indicated above. **Attached in Appendix A.**

Current landuse zoning as per local municipality IDP/records: The proposed site is currently zoned as Agricultural land (sheep farming).

In instances where there is more than one current land-use zoning, please attach a list of current land use zonings that also indicate which portions each use pertains to, to this application.

Is a change of land-use or a consent use application required?

NO X

1. Gradient of the Site

Indicate the general gradient of the site.

All Alternatives:

Flat	1:50 -	1:20 -	1:15 -	1:10 -	1:7,5 -	Steeper
	1:20	1:15	1:10	1:7,5	1:5	than 1:5
Alternative S2 (if any):						
Flat	1:50 -	1:20 -	1:15 -	1:10 -	1:7,5 -	Steeper
	1:20	1:15	1:10	1:7,5	1:5	than 1:5
Alternative	S3 (if any):	<u>.</u>		·	<u>.</u>	<u>.</u>
Flat	1:50 -	1:20 -	1:15 -	1:10 -	1:7,5 -	Steeper
	1:20	1:15	1:10	1:7,5	1:5	than 1:5

2. Location in Landscape

Indicate the landform(s) that best describes the site:

All Alternatives:

2.1 Ridgeline		2.4 Closed valley		2.7 Undulating plain / low hills	X
2.2 Plateau	Χ	2.5 Open valley		2.8 Dune	
2.3 Side slope of	x	2.6 Plain	Χ	2.9 Seafront	
hill/mountain					
2.10 At sea					

3. Groundwater, Soil and Geological Stability of the Site

Is the site(s) located on any of the following?

	All	Altern	ative	1	Alterna	ative
	Alternatives	S2 (if	any):		S3 (if a	any):
Shallow water table (less than 1.5m deep)	NO X	YES	NO		YES	NO
Dolomite, sinkhole or doline areas	NO X	YES	NO		YES	NO
Seasonally wet soils (often close to water bodies)	NO X	YES	NO		YES	NO
Unstable rocky slopes or steep slopes with loose soil	NO X	YES	NO		YES	NO
Dispersive soils (soils that dissolve in water)	NO X	YES	NO		YES	NO
Soils with high clay content (clay fraction more than 40%)	NO X	YES	NO		YES	NO

Any other unstable soil or geological feature An area sensitive to erosion

NO X	YES	NO	YES	NO
NO	YES	NO	YES	NO
Χ				

If you are unsure about any of the above or if you are concerned that any of the above aspects may be an issue of concern in the application, an appropriate specialist should be appointed to assist in the completion of this section. Information in respect of the above will often be available as part of the project information or at the planning sections of local authorities. Where it exists, the 1:50 000 scale Regional Geotechnical Maps prepared by the Council for Geo Science may also be consulted.

4. Groundcover

Indicate the types of groundcover present on the site. The location of all identified rare or endangered species or other elements should be accurately indicated on the site plan(s).

All Alternatives:

Natural veld - good condition ^E	Natural veld with scattered aliens ^E X	Natural veld with heavy alien infestation ^E	Veld dominated by alien species ^E	Gardens
Sport field	Cultivated land	Paved surface	Building or other structure	Bare soil

If any of the boxes marked with an "^E "is ticked, please consult an appropriate specialist to assist in the completion of this section if the environmental assessment practitioner doesn't have the necessary expertise. A consultant was consulted for this section, please see **Appendix D**.

5. Surface Water

Indicate the surface water present on and or adjacent to the site and alternative sites?

Perennial River		NO X
Non-Perennial River	YES X	
Permanent Wetland		NO X
Seasonal Wetland		NO X
Artificial Wetland	-	NO X
Estuarine / Lagoonal wetland		NO X

All Alternatives:

If any of the boxes marked YES or UNSURE is ticked, please provide a description of the relevant watercourse.

6. Land Use Character of Surrounding Area

Indicate land uses and/or prominent features that currently occur within a 500m radius of the site and give description of how this influences the application or may be impacted upon by the application:

All Alternatives:

Natural area	Dam or reservoir	Polo fields		
Low density residential	Hospital/medical centre	Filling station ^H		
Medium density residential	School	Landfill or waste treatment		
		site		
High density residential	Tertiary education facility	Plantation		
Informal residential ^A	Church	Agriculture		
Retail commercial &	Old age home	Piver stream or wetland		
warehousing	old age nome	River, stream or wettand		
Light industrial	Sewage treatment plant ^A	Nature conservation area		
Medium industrial AN	Train station or shunting	Mountain, koppie or ridge		
	yard ^N	i loantani, koppie el nage		
Heavy industrial AN	Railway line ^N	Museum		
Power station	Major road (4 lanes or more)	Historical building		
	N	instorical saliding		
Office/consulting room	Airport ^N	Protected Area		
Military or police	Harbour	Gravevard		
base/station/compound		Graveyard		
Spoil heap or slimes dam ^A	Sport facilities	Archaeological site		
Quarry, sand or borrow pit	Golf course	Other land uses (describe)		

If any of the boxes marked with an "N "are ticked, how will this impact / be impacted upon by the proposed activity? Specify and explain:

If any of the boxes marked with an "An" are ticked, how will this impact / be impacted upon by the proposed activity? Specify and explain:

If any of the boxes marked with an "H" are ticked, how will this impact / be impacted upon by the proposed activity? Specify and explain:

Does the proposed site (including any alternative sites) fall within any of the following:

All Alternatives:

Critical Biodiversity Area (as per provincial conservation plan)		NO X
Core area of a protected area?		NO X
Buffer area of a protected area?		NO X
Planned expansion area of an existing protected area?	YES X	
Existing offset area associated with a previous Environmental		NO X
Authorisation?		
Buffer area of the SKA?		NO X

If the answer to any of these questions was YES, a map indicating the affected area must be included in **Appendix A**.

7. Cultural/Historical Features

Are there any signs of culturally or historically significant elements, as defined in section 2 of the National Heritage Resources Act, 1999, (Act No. 25 of 1999), including Archaeological or paleontological sites, on or close (within 20m) to the site? If YES, explain:

A specialist was appointed to conduct a heritage impact assessment. The survey revealed that the following archaeological features can occur in the power line servitude alternatives.

- » Rock Engravings on dolerite koppies and boulders (Morris 1988, Parkington *et al* 2008);
- » Historical sites i.e Anglo Boerwar remains, farm infrastructure and graves; and
- » A spread of Stone Age Material of varying densities.

The Heritage specialist report is contained in Appendix D1.

If uncertain, conduct a specialist investigation by a recognised specialist in the field (archaeology or palaeontology) to establish whether there is such a feature(s) present on or close to the site. Briefly explain the findings of the specialist:

Will any building or structure older than 60 years be affected in any way?

Is it necessary to apply for a permit in terms of the National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act 25 of 1999)?

If YES, please provide proof that this permit application has been submitted to SAHRA or the relevant provincial authority.

8. Socio-Economic Character





a) Local Municipality

Please provide details on the socio-economic character of the local municipality in which the proposed site(s) are situated.

Level of unemployment:

The official unemployment rate in the Emthanjeni Local Municipality decreased for the ten year period between 2001 and 2011. In the Emthanjeni Local Municipality the unemployment rate decreased from 40.7% to 28.0%, a decrease of 12.7%. Youth unemployment in the Emthanjeni Local Municipality also dropped over the same period. Youth unemployment in the Emthanjeni Local Municipality is still high however at 37.2% in 2011.

The Social Impact Assessment Report is contained in Appendix D2.

Economic profile of local municipality:

The review of the local economic environment contained in the IDP 2013/2014 notes that the ELM lacks comprehensive and accurate economic data. The IDP does however note that the ELM is also working towards the development of a sustainable Local Growth and Development Strategy which would be aligned to the Provincial Growth and Development Strategy. The aim of Local Economic Development is to create employment opportunities for local residents, alleviate poverty, and redistribute resources and opportunities to the benefit of all local residents. The Economic Development Strategy will also be aligned to the District Municipality's strategy with the objective of accelerating growth, job creation and empowerment. In this regard the IDP indicated that the development of renewable energy projects in the area will benefit the local economy significantly. A SWOT analysis undertaken as part of the IDP process highlights the lack of economic growth and unemployment as key challenges. However, it is interesting to note that renewable energy is not identified as an opportunity or strength. This conflicts with other statements in the IDP, as indicated above.

In terms of major economic sectors, agriculture forms the backbone of Emthanjeni economy and accounts for the largest source of employment. Despite the harsh climate and poor carrying capacity of the veld, this sector still offers opportunities for growth and employment creation. The IDP also notes that the Manufacturing sector has the potential to grow, specifically with the development of renewable energy projects in De Aar and surrounding areas.

The Social Impact Assessment Report is contained in Appendix D2. Level of education:

The education levels at both the district and local municipal level have improved from 2001, with the percentage of the population over 20 years of age with no schooling in the Pixley ka Seme District Municipality decreasing from 27.1% to 14.6% in 2011. For the Emthanjeni Local Municipality the percentage has decreased from 23.7% to 11.0%. The percentage of the population over the age of 20 with matric also increased in the Pixley ka Seme District Municipality, Emthanjeni Local Municipality. This was from 12.9% to 20.5% in the Pixley ka Seme District Municipality, from 17.1% to 24.7% in the Emthanjeni Local Municipality. **The Social Impact Assessment Report is contained in Appendix D2.**

b) Socio-economic value of the activity

What is the expected capital value of the activity on completion?	The capital expenditure associated		
	will be in the region of R 2.4 billion		
	(current 2014 rand values).		
What is the expected yearly income that will be	+- R218m per annum increasing at		
generated by or as a result of the activity?	СРІ		
Will the activity contribute to service infrastructure?	YES		
Is the activity a public amenity?	YES		
How many new employment opportunities will be	Based on information from other		
created in the development and construction phase	WEFs the construction phase for the		
of the activity/ies?	proposed Castle WEF is expected to		
	extend over a period of \sim 18-24		
	months and create approximately 250		
	construction related jobs. During the		
	operational phase the project will		
	create $\sim 16-20$ permanent jobs.		
What is the expected value of the employment	The total wage bill with the		
opportunities during the development and	construction of the Castle WEF (250		
construction phase?	employees X 18 months) is estimated		
	to be in the region of R 73 million.		
	This is based on the assumption that		
	the average monthly salary for low		
	semi and skilled workers is P 8 000 P		
	15 000 and P 20 000 respectively		
	The injection of income into the sure		
	ine injection of income into the area		
	in the form of wages will represent a		
	significant opportunity for the local		
	economy and businesses in De Aar.		

What percentage of this will accrue to previously	The majority of the beneficiaries are
disadvantaged individuals?	likely to be historically disadvantaged
	(HD) members of the community.
	The construction phase is expected to
	extend over a period of \sim 18-24
	months and create approximately 250
	construction related jobs. Of this total
	approximately 25 % (62) will be
	available to skilled personnel
	(engineers, technicians, management
	and supervisory), ~ 35 % (88) to
	semi-skilled personnel (drivers,
	equipment operators), and \sim 40%
	(100) to low skilled personnel
	(construction labourers, security
	staff).
How many permanent new employment	During the operational phase the
opportunities will be created during the operational	project will create ~ 16-20
phase of the activity?	employment opportunities. Of this
	total 6-8 will be permanent and 9-12
	part time employees.
What is the expected current value of the	The total wage bill with the
employment opportunities during the first 10 years?	construction of a the Castle WEF (250
	employees X 18 months) is estimated
	to be in the region of R 73 million.
	This is based on the assumption that
	the average monthly salary for low,
	semi and skilled workers is R 8 000, R
	15 000 and R 30 000 respectively
What percentage of this will accrue to previously	Approximately 70%

9. Biodiversity

Please note: The Department may request specialist input/studies depending on the nature of the biodiversity occurring on the site and potential impact(s) of the proposed activity/ies. To assist with the identification of the biodiversity occurring on site and the ecosystem status consult http://bgis.sanbi.org or BGIShelp@sanbi.org. Information is also available on compact disc (cd) from the Biodiversity-GIS Unit, Ph (021) 799 8698. This information may be updated from time to time and it is the applicant/ EAP's responsibility to ensure that the latest version is used. A map of the relevant biodiversity information (including an indication of the habitat conditions as per (b)

below) and must be provided as an overlay map to the property/site plan as Appendix **D** to this report.

Indicate the applicable biodiversity planning categories of all areas on a) site and indicate the reason(s) provided in the biodiversity plan for the selection of the specific area as part of the specific category)

Systematic Biodiversity Planning Category		g Category	If CBA or ESA, indicate the reason(s) for its selection in biodiversity plan	
Critical Biodiversity Area (CBA)	Ecological Support Area (ESA)	Other Natural Area (ONA)	No Natural Area Remaining (NNR)	N/A

Indicate and describe the habitat condition on site b)

All Alternatives:

Habitat Condition	Percentage of habitat condition class (adding up to 100%)	Description and additional Comments and Observations (including additional insight into condition, e.g. poor land management practises, presence of quarries, grazing, harvesting regimes etc.).
Natural	99%	Two vegetation types (Northern Upper Karoo and Besemkaree Koppies Shrubland) occur within the site itself. The eastern part of the site consists of Northern Upper Karoo and the western part of the site consists of Besemkaree Koppies Shrubland. Both vegetation types are classified as Least Threatened and have not been significantly transformed. The western part of Vendussie Kuil lies within a National Protected Areas Expansion Strategy focus area. NPAES focus areas are areas that are considered important for the expansion of the land-based protected area network as they contribute towards meeting biodiversity thresholds for terrestrial or freshwater ecosystems, maintaining ecological processes or climate change resilience. The affected NPAES focus area is a part of the Senqu Caledon focus area, but at 6400ha it is a relatively small part of the broader 345 913ha Senqu Caledon focus area. Furthermore, only about 450ha of the focus area is actually within the site and the loss of this area to the development would not be likely to

		targets within this focus area. The overlapping extent consists of 0.13% of the Focus Area and as the wind farm development will result in less than 10% transformation, the total extent of habitat lost to direct habitat transformation would be less than 0.013% of the Focus Area. Given the extremely small proportion of the focus area that is potentially impacted by the development and the low level of transformation that will be experienced within the affected area, this is not considered to be a significant impact that warrants assessment in its own right.
Near Natural		-
(includes areas with	0%	
level of alien	0 /0	
invasive plants)		
Degraded		-
(includes areas	00/	
heavily invaded by	0%	
alien plants)		
Transformed		Parts of the area has been transformed, with nearby
(includes cultivation,		roads and sheep kraals.
dams, urban,	1%	
plantation, roads,		
etc.)		

c) Complete the table to indicate:

- (i) the type of vegetation, including its ecosystem status, present on the site; and
- (ii) whether an aquatic ecosystem is present on site.

Terrestrial Ecos	systems	ns Aquatic Ecos		systems			
Ecosystem threat	Critical	Wetland (including rivers,					
status as per the National	Endangered	depressions, channelled and unchanneled wetlands, flats, seeps pans, and artificial wetlands)		Estuary	Coastline		
Environmental	Vulnerable			LStudiy	Coast	Coastine	
Management:	Least						
Biodiversity Act (Act No. 10 of 2004)	Threatened X	ΝΟ Χ		NO X		NO X	

d) Please provide a description of the vegetation type and/or aquatic ecosystem present on site, including any important biodiversity features/information identified on site (e.g. threatened species and special habitats)

<u>Vegetation</u>

According to the national vegetation map (Mucina & Rutherford 2006), two vegetation types (Northern Upper Karoo and Besemkaree Koppies Shrubland) occur within the site itself. The eastern part of the site consists of Northern Upper Karoo and the western part of the site consists of Besemkaree Koppies Shrubland. Both vegetation types are classified as Least Threatened and have not been significantly transformed. These vegetation types are described below and in more detail in the ecological report:

- » Northern Upper Karoo is usually an open shrubland dominated by low karoo shrubs and grasses with larger elements such as Acacia mellifera more prominent in the north. Known endemic plant species found in this vegetation type include: Lithops hookeriana, Stomatium pluridens, Atriplex spongiosa, Galenia exigua and Manulea deserticola.
- Besemkaree Koppies Shrubland is associated with the slopes of koppies, butts, and tafelbergs within the dry grasslands of the southern and central Free State and the adjacent parts of the Northern and Eastern Cape. This vegetation type consists of an upper layer of tall shrubs, such as Searsia erosa, S.burchellii, S.ciliata, Euclea crispa, Diospyros austro-africana and Olea europea subsp africana, with an understorey of low shrubs and grasses. This vegetation type is associated with dolerite koppies and sills embedded within Karoo supergroup elements. Four vegetation-type endemics have been recorded including Euphorbia crassipes, Neohenrica sibettii, N.spicata as well as an undescribed species of Cussonia.

Although these two vegetation are clearly differentiated on the SA Vegmap, in reality, they form a much more patchy mosaic at the site. In the west of the site, there are large tracts that have more affinity with Northern Upper Karoo than Besemkaree Koppies Shrubland. Even within this area, the flats between the rocky outcrops are consistent with Northern Upper Karoo and the north-west of the site consists of the large plain of this vegetation type.

National Protected Areas Expansion Strategy (NPAES) focus area

The western part of Vendussie Kuil lies within a National Protected Areas Expansion Strategy (NPAES) focus area. NPAES focus areas are areas that are considered important for the expansion of the land-based protected area network as they contribute towards meeting biodiversity thresholds for terrestrial or freshwater ecosystems, maintaining ecological processes or climate change resilience. The affected NPAES focus area is a part of the Senqu Caledon focus area, but at 6400ha it a relatively small part of the broader 345 913ha Senqu Caledon focus area. Furthermore, the powerline would only intercept a small part of this area and the development would not be likely to compromise the ability to meet future conservation targets within this focus area. Given the extremely small proportion of the focus area that is potentially impacted by the development and the low level of transformation that will be experienced within the affected area, this is not considered to be a significant impact that warrants assessment in its own right.

Drainage Lines & Washes

There are several quite well developed drainage lines within the site as well as on the lower plain towards the substations. The larger drainage lines have a well-developed woody component consisting of species such as Acacia karoo, Searsia lancea, Searsia pyroides var. gracilis and Diospyros lycioides subsp. lycioides. On the lower plains, Tamarix usneoides was also common, indicating greater salinity and aridity compared to those areas on the plateau. Common shrubs include, Artemisia afra var. afra, Asparagus suaveolens, Pteronia erythrochaeta, Atriplex vestita var. appendiculata, Lycium pumilum, Melianthus comosus and Salsola aphylla. Dominant grasses and sedges include Cynodon incompletus, Aristida adscensionis, Sporobolus fimbriatus and Scirpoides dioecus. Although the abundance of listed and protected species in this habitat type was low, it is ecologically important and is considered highly sensitive and as little infrastructure as possible should be placed in this habitat.

<u>Mammals</u>

The Castle Wind Energy Facility site lies within the range of 51 terrestrial mammals, including four listed mammal species. The four listed species are the Brown Hyaena *Hyaena brunnea* (NT), Black-footed cat *Felis nigripes* (VU) South African Hedgehog *Atelerix frontalis* (NT) and Honey Badger *Mellivora capensis* (SA RDB EN). While the Hedgehog, Black-footed Cat and Honey Badger are likely to occur at the site, the Brown Hyaena is less likely to be present. All of these species have relatively wide ranges across South Africa.

The south-facing slopes with dense vegetation, riparian areas and rocky outcrops are likely to provide habitat for mammalian species. Species observed at the site include Suricate, Yellow Mongoose, South African Ground Squirrel, Cape Porcupine, Springbok, Steenbok, Namaqua Rock Mouse, Baboon, Aardvark, Rock Hyrax, Hewitt's Red Rock Rabbit and African Mole Rat. All of these species have relatively wide ranges across South Africa and the development would not be likely to result in a significant overall decline in the available habitat for these species.

Reptiles

According to the distribution maps available in the literature, as many as 44 reptiles could occur in the study area. However, according to the records within the SARCA database, only 32 have been recorded in the region, which is a more representative estimate of the species richness likely to be encountered at the site. Species observed include Karoo Girdled Lizard *Karusasaurus polyzonus*, Spotted Sand Lizard *Pedioplanis lineoocellata lineoocellata*, Western Three-striped Skink *Trachylepis occidentalis* and Leopard Tortoise *Stigmochelys pardalis*.

The site represents a relatively rich habitat for reptiles as it contains various types of rocky outcrops, koppies, cliffs and steep slopes as well as more densely vegetated riparian areas, and flats of varying texture. Despite the likely high reptile richness at the site, no listed species are known from the area.

<u>Amphibians</u>

Eleven frog species are known from the broad area around the site, including the Giant Bullfrog (*Pyxicephalus adpersus*) which is listed as Near Threatened. The majority of species known from the area are toads and sand frogs which are relatively independent of water except for breeding purposes, which reflects the aridity of the area.

The Ecological Report is contained in Appendix D3.

SECTION C: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

1. Advertisements and Notice

Publication name	In order to notify and inform the public of the proposed project and				
	invite members of the public to register as interested and affected				
	parties (I&APs), the project at larger facility and its associated				
	infrastructure and EIA process was ac	lvertised in the De Aar Echo and			
	Die Volksbad.				
Date published	23 August 2013				
Site notice	Latitude	Longitude			
position					
1.Site Notice at	30942/38 55"5	24º 5'10 57"E			
Hydra Substation	50 42 56.55 5	24 J 10.37 L			
2. Site notices at					
entrance to	30°35'7 44"S	24916'32 53"E			
proposed wind farm	50 557.44 0	24 10 J2.JJ L			
site					
3. Site Notices					
placed along the	20°25'20 00"S	249 510 44"5			
R48 Near the Solar	30 33 39.00 3	24° 3 19.44 L			
Capital Substation					
4. Site notices					
places along the	30°44'48.54"S	24° 4'49.58"E			
N10					
Date placed	Site Notices: Placed on 15 January				

Include proof of the placement of the relevant advertisements and notices in Appendix E1.

2. Determination of Appropriate Measures

Provide details of the measures taken to include all potential I&APs as required by Regulation 54(2)(e) and 54(7) of GN R.543.

The public consultation process has included the publishing of notices regarding the proposed project as well as the distribution of notification letters to identify I&APs. Stakeholders were also notified of the availability of the draft Basic Assessment Report through newspaper adverts and notifications.

Key stakeholders (other than organs of state) identified in terms of Regulation 54(2)(b) of GN R.543:

Title, Name and Surname	Affiliation/ key stakeholder status
Attached as Appendix E2	

Include proof that the key stakeholder received written notification of the proposed activities as **Appendix E2**. This proof may include any of the following:

- e-mail delivery reports;
- registered mail receipts;
- courier waybills;
- signed acknowledgements of receipt; and/or
- or any other proof as agreed upon by the competent authority.

3. Issues Raised By Interested and Affected Parties

Any comments received during the review period of the draft Basic Assessment Report as well as responses provided will be captured and recorded within the Comments and Response Report to be attached as Appendix E 3 in the final Basic Assessment Report.

Summary of main issues raised by I&APs	Summary of response from EAP
Concern with birds (especially Blue Cranes)	Reflective flappers will be placed in certain
colliding with the power lines	sections of the power line in order to mitigate
	the impact on birds.

4. Comments and Response Report

The practitioner must record all comments received from I&APs and respond to each comment before the Draft BAR is submitted. The comments and responses must be captured in a comments and response report as prescribed in the EIA regulations and be attached to the Final BAR as **Appendix E3**.

5. Authority Participation

Authorities and organs of state identified as key stakeholders:

Authority/Organ of State	Contact person (Title, Name and Surname)	Tel No	Fax No	e-mail	Postal address
Attached in					
Appendix E3					

Include proof that the Authorities and Organs of State received written notification of the proposed activities as **Appendix E3**. In the case of renewable energy projects, Eskom and the SKA Project Office must be included in the list of Organs of State. Refer to **Appendix E3**.

6. Consultation with other Stakeholders

Note that, for any activities (linear or other) where deviation from the public participation requirements may be appropriate, the person conducting the public participation process may deviate from the requirements of that sub-regulation to the extent and in the manner as may be agreed to by the competent authority.

Proof of any such agreement must be provided, where applicable. Application for any deviation from the regulations relating to the public participation process must be submitted prior to the commencement of the public participation process.

A list of registered I&APs must be included as **Appendix E4**.

Copies of any correspondence and minutes of any meetings held must be included in Appendix E6.

SECTION D: IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The assessment of impacts must adhere to the minimum requirements in the EIA Regulations, 2010, and should take applicable official guidelines into account. The issues raised by interested and affected parties should also be addressed in the assessment of impacts.

1. Impacts That May Result From the Planning and Design, Construction, **Operational, Decommissioning and Closure Phases**

Provide a summary and anticipated significance of the potential direct, indirect and cumulative impacts that are likely to occur as a result of the planning and design phase, construction phase, operational phase, decommissioning and closure phase, including impacts relating to the choice of site/activity/technology alternatives as well as the mitigation measures that may eliminate or reduce the potential impacts listed. This impact assessment must be applied to all the identified alternatives to the activities identified in Section A(2) of this report.

A summary and anticipated significance of the potential direct, indirect and cumulative impacts that are likely to occur as a result of the planning and design phase, construction phase, operational phase and decommissioning phase of the proposed 132kV power line associated with the Castle Wind Energy Facility is provided in Tables 1 and 2 overleaf.

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation	
CONSTRUCTION PHASE				
	Ecolog	IY		
1. Impacts on vegetation &	Direct impacts			
 Impacts on vegetation & listed plant species during construction 	The proposed 132 kV transmission line will be required to connect the proposed satellite substation/s to the proposed Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital).	Low	 Preconstruction walk-through of the power line route in order to locate species of conservation concern that can be translocated as well as comply with the Northern Cape Nature Conservation Act and DAFF permitting requirements. Power line construction to commence only after walk through has been conducted and necessary permits obtained. A permanent road should not be established along the power line route where other alternatives are available. Where the power line traverses steep slopes, measures should be taken to ensure that disturbance during construction does not initiate erosion. 	
	Indirect impacts			
	With appropriate avoidance and mitigation indirect impacts will be very low.	Low	» N/A	
	Cumulative impacts			
	The overall footprint of the power line can be maintained at a low level and cumulative impacts on the terrestrial environment would be low.	Low	 Vegetation clearing to be kept to a minimum. Construction activities to be restricted to the power line servitude. Rehabilitate all disturbed areas as soon as possible when construction is complete in an area. 	
2. Faunal habitat disturbance.	Direct impacts			

Table 1: Assessment of impacts associated with Alternatives 1

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
	Direct impacts on the local faunal	Low	» Any fauna directly threatened by the construction
	community may occur due to habitat		activities should be removed to a safe location by
	disturbance during the construction phase.		the ECO or other suitably qualified person.
			» The collection, hunting or harvesting of any
			plants or animals at the site should be strictly
			forbidden.
			» All hazardous materials should be stored in the
			appropriate manner to prevent contamination of
			the site. Any accidental chemical, fuel and oil
			spills that occur at the site should be cleaned up
			in the appropriate manner as related to the
			nature of the spill.
			All construction vehicles should adhere to a low
			speed limit to avoid collisions with susceptible
			species such as snakes and tortoises.
	Indirect impacts	1	
	Indirect impacts on the local faunal	Low	» Mitigation as above
	community may occur due to habitat		
	disturbance during the construction phase.		
	Cumulative impact	1	
	During the construction phase the activity	Low	» Mitigation as above
	would contribute to cumulative fauna		
	disturbance and disruption in the area, but		
	the impact would be of local extent and not		
	of high significance.		
3. Impacts to cultural heritage	Direct impacts		
sites.	During the construction phase activities	Low	» From the desktop assessment no fatal flaws were
	resulting in disturbance of surfaces and/or		identified in the Power Line corridors. It is
	sub-surfaces may destroy, damage, alter,		recommended that the preferred power line
	or remove from its original position		corridor is subjected to a heritage walk through

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
	archaeological or historical material.		when the pylon positions are determined and
			mitigation includes the micro adjustments of
			tower positions for the in situ preservation of
			sites.
	Indirect impacts		
	With appropriate avoidance and mitigation	Low	» N/A
	indirect impacts will be very low.		
	Cumulative impacts		
	No impact on any site is foreseen, this	Low	» Archaeological sites are non-renewable and
	should be verified by a heritage walk		impact on any archaeological context or material
	through prior to construction.		will be permanent and destructive. The
			cumulative impacts will be low.
	Socia	1	
1. Negative impact on the	Direct impacts		
sense of place associated	Potential visual impact and impact on	Low	» The recommendations contained in the Visual
with power lines	sense of place associated with power lines		Impact Assessment should be implemented. The
			siting measures listed above to address the
			potential impacts associated with the construction
			phase should also be implemented.
	Indirect impacts	Γ	
	With appropriate avoidance and mitigation	Low	» N/A
	indirect impacts will be very low.		
	Cumulative impacts	1	
	Limited visual and impact on sense of	Low	 Mitigation as above
	place		
	Visual Im	pact	

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
1. The potential visual impact	Direct impacts		
of power line on observers in close proximity to the proposed project	Visual impact of the overhead power line on sensitive visual receptors in close proximity thereto.	Low	 Rehabilitation of all construction areas, including the power line servitude. Ensure that vegetation is not cleared unnecessarily.
	» Indirect impacts		
	None	N/A	» N/A
	» Cumulative impacts		
	The construction of the overhead power lines will increase the cumulative visual impact of buildings and industrial type	Low	» N/A
	infrastructure within the region. This is		
	relevant in light of existing roads and		
	power lines already present in the area.		
	OPERATION	PHASE	
	Avifau	na	
1. Collision of birds with	Direct impacts		
overhead cables, in particular the earth wires of the proposed power line.	Bird mortality due to collision with the proposed 132 kV power line.	Moderate	 Power line linking turbines to on site substation must be buried underground. Grid connection power line must be built on the selected alternative corridor and high risk sections of power line must be installed with a suitable anti bird collision line marking device. High risk sections of power line must be identified by an avifaunal walk through once the alignment has been finalized. Bird Flight Diverters (BFD) must be installed on the full span length on the earth wire (not only the

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
			middle 66% of each span as previously
			believed).
			» Light and dark colour devices must be alternated
			so as to provide contrast against both dark and
			light backgrounds respectively. These devices
			must be installed as soon as the earth wire is
			strung. It will be the responsibility the line
			operator (Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited or
			Eskom) to ensure that these devices are
			maintained in working order and replaced where
			necessary.
	Indirect impacts		
	Potential loss of species.	Moderate	» The proposed power line should be marked
			with Bird Flight Diverters on the earth wire of
			the line for their entire length, 5 metres
			apart, and alternating black and white.
	Cumulative impacts		
	The cumulative collision impact of several	High	» The proposed power lines for evacuation of the
	new power lines associated with the		electricity generated from the renewable energy
	various proposed renewable energy		facilities in the area should be marked with Bird
	facilities within a 50 km radius around De		Flight Diverters on the earth wire of the line in
	Aar will probably be at a High. The Castle		all areas identified as being sensitive from an
	site is almost surrounded by two other		avifauna perspective.
	authorized wind energy facilities		
2. Electrocution of birds on	Direct impacts		
overhead power line.	Electrocution of birds whilst perched or	Moderate	» Only Eskom approved bird friendly pylon
	roosting on pylons or towers. Mostly large		structures must be used for the entire length of
	eagles affected.		the power line, in addition to selecting the
			correct alternative route.
	Indirect impacts		

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation		
	Potential loss of species.	Moderate	» Only Eskom approved bird friendly pylon		
			structures must be used for the entire length of		
			the power line, in addition to selecting the		
			correct alternative route.		
	Cumulative impacts				
	The Castle site is almost surrounded by	High	» Only Eskom approved bird friendly pylon		
	two other authorized wind energy facilities		structures must be used for the entire length of		
			the power line, in addition to selecting the		
			correct alternative route		
Social					
1. Social impacts during	Direct impacts	1			
operation.	Promotion of renewable energy projects.	Moderate	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude		
			as a whole.		
	Visual impact and impact on sense of	Moderate	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude		
	place.		as a whole.		
	Indirect impacts				
	Negative impact on tourism in the area	Low	» Mitigation measures should be implemented.		
	Cumulative impacts	·			
	The positive cumulative impacts include	High	» N/A		
	creation of employment, skills				
	development and training opportunities,				
	creation of downstream business				
	opportunities.				
	Potential negative impact on other tourism	Low	» Mitigation measures contained in VIA should be		
	activities in the area.		implemented.		
Visual					
1. The potential visual impact	Direct Impacts				
of power line on observers	Visual impact of the overhead power line	Low	» Maintenance of servitude.		
in close proximity to the	on sensitive visual receptors in close				
proposed project	proximity thereto.				
Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation		
--------------------------------	---	--------------	--		
	Visual impact of the proposed power line	Low	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude		
	on the visual quality of the landscape and		as a whole.		
	sense of place of the region.				
	Indirect Impacts		•		
	None.	-	» N/A		
	Cumulative Impacts				
	The proposed power line is likely to	Low	» N/A		
	increase the potential cumulative visual				
	impact of electricity generation and				
	distribution infrastructure within the				
	region.				
2. The potential visual impact	Direct Impacts				
of the power line and	Direct visual impacts due to construction	Low	» Maintain the general appearance of the		
access roads on observers	activities.		servitude as a whole.		
in close proximity to the	Indirect Impacts	r	1		
proposed project.	The visual impact of construction activities	Low	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude		
Proposed Projects	will be removed after construction is		as a whole during operation.		
	completed, provided the power line				
	servitude is maintained.				
	Cumulative Impacts				
	The construction of this power line is likely	Low	» N/A		
	to increase the potential cumulative visual				
	impact of electricity generation and				
	distribution infrastructure within the				
	region.				

DECOMMISSIONING AND CLOSURE PHASE			
» Disassemble power line	Direct impacts		
component according to regulatory requirements Impacts associated with erosion and alien vegetation invasion. Disturbed areas will be rehabilitated.	Social impacts associated with loss of jobs albeit relatively small in number. Impacts associated with erosion and alien vegetation invasion. Visual Impacts. Ecological Impacts.	Low	 The potential impacts associated with the decommissioning phase can be effectively managed with the implementation of a retrenchment and downscaling programme. With mitigation, the impacts are assessed to be Low (negative). Remove all alien plants in the project area. Remove infrastructure not required for the post-decommissioning use of the servitude. Rehabilitate all areas. Consult an ecologist regarding rehabilitation specifications. Monitor rehabilitated areas post-decommissioning and implement remedial actions. Any fauna encountered during decommission should be removed to safety by the ECO or other suitably qualified person. All vehicles to adhere to low speed limits (40km/h max) on the site, to reduce risk of faunal collisions as well as reduce dust. Electrical cables and other power line components should be removed and no parts left lying in the veld.
	Indirect impacts		
	Impacts associated with erosion and alien	Low	Establish an on-going monitoring programme to
	vegetation invasion.		detect and quantify any aliens that may become established.
	Cumulative impacts		

PROPOSED 132KV POWER LINE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CASTLE WIND ENERGY FACILITY ON A SITE NEAR DE AAR, NORTHERN CAPE PROVINCE Final Basic Assessment Report

	N/A	N/A	N/A
--	-----	-----	-----

Ac	tivity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
-		CONSTRUCTIO	ON PHASE	
		Ecolog	IY	
1.	Impacts on vegetation &	Direct impacts		
listed plant species during construction	The proposed 132 kV transmission line will be required to connect the proposed satellite substation/s to the proposed Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital).	Low	 Preconstruction walk-through of the power line route in order to locate species of conservation concern that can be translocated as well as comply with the Northern Cape Nature Conservation Act and DAFF permitting requirements. Power line construction to commence only after walk through has been conducted and necessary permits obtained. A permanent road should not be established along the power line route where other alternatives are available. Where the power line traverses steep slopes, measures should be taken to ensure that disturbance during construction does not initiate disturbance. 	
		Indirect impacts		
		With appropriate avoidance and mitigation indirect impacts will be very low.	Low	» N/A
		Cumulative impacts	1	
		The overall footprint of the power line can	Low	» Vegetation clearing to be kept to a minimum.
		be maintained at a low level and		» Construction activities to be restricted to the
		cumulative impacts on the terrestrial		power line servitude.
		environment would be low.		 Rehabilitate all disturbed areas as soon as possible when construction is complete in an area.

Table 2:	Assessment of impa	acts associated with	Alternatives 2A and 2B ²
	Assessment of impe		AICHIULINCS ZA UNU ZD

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
2. Faunal habitat disturbance.	Direct impacts		
	Direct impacts on the local faunal community may occur due to habitat disturbance during the construction phase.	Low	 Any fauna directly threatened by the construction activities should be removed to a safe location by the ECO or other suitably qualified person. The collection, hunting or harvesting of any plants or animals at the site should be strictly forbidden. All hazardous materials should be stored in the appropriate manner to prevent contamination of the site. Any accidental chemical, fuel and oil spills that occur at the site should be cleaned up in the appropriate manner as related to the nature of the spill. All construction vehicles should adhere to a low speed limit to avoid collisions with susceptible species such as snakes and tortoises.
	Indirect impacts	I	
	Indirect impacts on the local faunal community may occur due to habitat disturbance during the construction phase.	Low	 Mitigation as above
	Cumulative impact	I	
	During the construction phase the activity would contribute to cumulative fauna disturbance and disruption in the area, but the impact would be of local extent and not of high significance.	Low	 Mitigation as above
3. Impacts to cultural heritage	Direct impacts		
sites.	During the construction phase activities resulting in disturbance of surfaces and/or sub-surfaces may destroy, damage, alter,	Low	 From the desktop assessment no fatal flaws were identified in the Power Line corridors. It is recommended that the preferred power line

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
	or remove from its original position		corridor is subjected to a heritage walk through
	archaeological or historical material.		when the pylon positions are determined and
			mitigation includes the micro adjustments of
			tower positions for the in situ preservation of
			sites.
	Indirect impacts		
	With appropriate avoidance and mitigation	Low	» N/A
	indirect impacts will be very low.		
	Cumulative impacts	·	
	No impact on any site is foreseen, this	Low	» Archaeological sites are non-renewable and
	should be verified by a heritage walk		impact on any archaeological context or material
	through prior to construction.		will be permanent and destructive. The
			cumulative impacts will be low.
Social	•	·	
2. Negative impact on the	Direct impacts		
sense of place associated	Potential visual impact and impact on	Low	» The recommendations contained in the Visual
with power lines	sense of place associated with power lines		Impact Assessment should be implemented. The
			siting measures listed above to address the
			potential impacts associated with the construction
			phase should also be implemented. These
			include:
			» Ensure that vegetation is not unnecessarily
			cleared or removed during the construction
			period.
			» Reduce the construction period through careful
			logistical planning and productive implementation
			of resources.
			» Plan the placement of lay-down areas and
			temporary construction equipment camps in
			order to minimise vegetation clearing (i.e. in

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
Activity	Impact summary	Significance	 Proposed mitigation already disturbed areas) wherever possible. Restrict the activities and movement of construction workers and vehicles to the immediate construction site and existing access roads. Ensure that rubble, litter, and disused construction materials are appropriately stored (if not removed daily) and then disposed regularly at licensed waste facilities. Reduce and control construction dust through the use of approved dust suppression techniques as and when required (i.e. whenever dust becomes apparent). Restrict construction activities to daylight hours in order to negate or reduce the visual impacts associated with lighting. Rehabilitate all disturbed areas, construction
			completion of construction works. Consult an ecologist to give input into rehabilitation specifications.
	Indirect impacts		
	With appropriate avoidance and mitigation indirect impacts will be very low.	Low	» N/A
	Cumulative impacts	1	
	Limited visual and impact on sense of place	Low	 » Mitigation as above

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
	Visual Im	pact	
1. The potential visual impact	Direct impacts		
of power line on observers in close proximity to the proposed project	Visual impact of the overhead power line on sensitive visual receptors in close proximity thereto.	Low	 Rehabilitation of all construction areas, including the power line servitude. Ensure that vegetation is not cleared unnecessarily.
	» Indirect impacts		
	None	N/A	» N/A
	» Cumulative impacts	l	
	The construction of the overhead power lines will increase the cumulative visual impact of buildings and industrial type infrastructure within the region. This is relevant in light of existing roads and power lines already present in the area.	Low	» N/X
OPERATION PHASE	power miles an eady present in the arear		
Avifauna			
1. Collision of birds with	Direct impacts		
overhead cables, in particular the earth wires of the proposed power line.	Bird mortality due to collision with the proposed 132 kV power line.	Moderate	 Power line linking turbines to on site substation must be buried underground wherever possible. Grid connection power line must be built on the selected alternative corridor and high risk sections of power line must be installed with a suitable Bird Flight Diverters marking device. High risk sections of power line must be identified by an avifaunal walk through once

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
			the alignment has been finalized. These
			devices must be installed on the full span
			length on the earth wire (not only the middle
			66% of each span as previously believed).
			» Light and dark colour devices must be
			alternated so as to provide contrast against
			both dark and light backgrounds
			respectively. These devices must be
			installed as soon as the earth wire is strung.
			It will be the responsibility the line operator
			(Castle Wind Farm (Pty) Limited or Eskom)
			to ensure that these devices are maintained
			in working order and replaced where
			necessary.
	Indirect impacts	ſ	
	Potential loss of species.	Moderate	» The proposed power line should be marked
			with Bird Flight Diverters on the earth wire of
			the line for their entire length, 5 metres
	Cumulativa immasta		apart, and alternating black and white.
		1.0.4.	
	The cumulative collision impact of several	High	The proposed power lines for evacuation of the electricity generated from the renewable
	new power lines associated with the		the electricity generated from the renewable
	facilities within a E0 km radius around Do		energy facilities in the area should be
	Asr will probably be at a High. The Castle		narked with Bird Flight Diverters on the
	site is almost surrounded by two other		boing consitive from an avifauna perspective
	authorized wind energy facilities		being sensitive from an avriatina perspective.
2 Electrocution of birds on	Direct impacts		
2. Electrocation of birds off	Electrocution of birds whilst perchad as	Modorato	» Only Eckom approved bird friendly aven
overneau power nne.	roosting on pylons or towers Mostly large	moderale	ctructures must be used for the optimal on the structures of th
	or covers. Mostly large		of the power line, in addition to colocting the
	cayles allected.	1	I the power line, in addition to selecting the

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation
			correct alternative route
	Indirect impacts		
	Potential loss of species.	Moderate	» Only Eskom approved bird friendly pylon
			structures must be used for the entire length
			of the power line, in addition to selecting the
			correct alternative route
	Cumulative impacts		
	The Castle site is almost surrounded by	High	» Only Eskom approved bird friendly pylon
	two other authorized wind energy facilities		structures must be used for the entire length
			of the power line, in addition to selecting the
			correct alternative route
	Socia		
1. Social impacts during	Direct impacts		
operation.	Promotion of renewable energy projects.	Moderate	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude
			as a whole.
	Visual impact and impact on sense of	Moderate	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude
	place.		as a whole.
	Indirect impacts		
	Negative impact on tourism in the area	Low	» Mitigation measures should be implemented.
	Cumulative impacts		
	The positive cumulative impacts include	High	» N/A
	creation of employment, skills		
	development and training opportunities,		
	creation of downstream business		
	opportunities.		
	Potential negative impact on other tourism	Low	» Mitigation measures contained in VIA should be
	activities in the area.		implemented.
	Visua	1	·
1. The potential visual impact	Direct Impacts		
of power line on observers	Visual impact of the overhead power line	Low	» Maintenance of servitude.

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	Proposed mitigation	
in close proximity to the	on sensitive visual receptors in close			
proposed project	proximity thereto.			
	Visual impact of the proposed power line	Low	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude	
	on the visual quality of the landscape and		as a whole.	
	sense of place of the region.			
	Indirect Impacts			
	None.	-	» N/A	
	Cumulative Impacts			
	The proposed power line is likely to	Low	» N/A	
	increase the potential cumulative visual			
	impact of electricity generation and			
	distribution infrastructure within the			
	region.			
2. The potential visual impact	Direct Impacts			
of the power line and access	Direct visual impacts due to construction	Low	» Maintain the general appearance of the	
roads on observers in close	activities.		servitude as a whole.	
proximity to the proposed	Indirect Impacts			
project.	The visual impact of construction activities	Low	» Maintain the general appearance of the servitude	
	will be removed after construction is		as a whole during operation.	
	completed, provided the power line			
	servitude is maintained.			
	Cumulative Impacts			
	The construction of this power line is likely	Low	» N/A	
	to increase the potential cumulative visual			
	impact of electricity generation and			
	distribution infrastructure within the			
	region.			
DECOMMISSIONING AND CLOSURE PHASE				

Activity	Impact summary	Significance	icance Proposed mitigation	
» Disassemble power line	Direct impacts			
 Disassemble power line component according to regulatory requirements Impacts associated with erosion and alien vegetation invasion. Disturbed areas will be rehabilitated. 	Social impacts associated with loss of jobs albeit relatively small in number. Impacts associated with erosion and alien vegetation invasion. Visual Impacts. Ecological Impacts.	Low	 The potential impacts associated with the decommissioning phase can be effectively managed with the implementation of a retrenchment and downscaling programme. With mitigation, the impacts are assessed to be Low (negative). Remove all alien plants in the project area. Remove all alien plants in the project area. Remove infrastructure not required for the post-decommissioning use of the servitude. Rehabilitate all areas. Consult an ecologist regarding rehabilitation specifications. Monitor rehabilitated areas post-decommissioning and implement remedial actions. Any fauna encountered during decommission should be removed to safety by the ECO or other suitably qualified person. All vehicles to adhere to low speed limits (40km/h max) on the site, to reduce risk of faunal collisions as well as reduce dust. Electrical cables and other power line components should be removed and no parts left 	
			lying in the veid.	
	Indirect impacts	1		
	impacts associated with erosion and alien	LOW	Establish an on-going monitoring programme to	
	vegetation invasion.		detect and quantify any aliens that may become established.	
	Cumulative impacts			
	N/A	N/A	N/A	

Table 3:Assessment of the Do Nothing Alternative

Activity	Impact Summary	Significance	Proposed Mitigation	
NO GO ALTERNATIVE				
This is the option of not constructing the 132kV power line within the servitude corridor proposed. This option will result in no impacts occurring on the				
biophysical environment (i.e. biodiversity, soils), and will result in no visual impact. However, this will result in the situation where the Castle Wind				
Energy Facility cannot be connected to the electricity grid. This will result in a lost opportunity for renewable energy production within the country, and				
will impact on the local community as a community trust is to be established during the operational phase of the wind energy facility project.				
	Direct impacts:			
	Impact on electricity supply to the	High	Implementation of the proposed project is a mitigation in this	
	grid, impacting on the local		regard	
	community and the economic			
	development in the area			
	Indirect impacts:			
	N/A	N/A	N/A	
	Cumulative impacts:			
	N/A	N/A	N/A	

A complete impact assessment in terms of Regulation 22(2)(i) of GN R.543 must be included as **Appendix F**.

2. Environmental Impact Statement

Taking the assessment of potential impacts into account, please provide an environmental impact statement that summarises the impact that the proposed activity and its alternatives may have on the environment after the management and mitigation of impacts have been taken into account, with specific reference to types of impact, duration of impacts, likelihood of potential impacts actually occurring and the significance of impacts.

This section provides a summary of the environmental assessment and conclusions drawn for the proposed construction of a 132kV power line connecting the proposed Castle Wind Energy Facility to the electricity grid via either the newly constructed Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital Substation) (Alternative 1) or the existing Hydra substation (Alternative 2A and 2B). The preferred point of connection will be determined by Eskom.

In doing so, it draws on the information gathered as part of the Basic Assessment process and the knowledge gained by the environmental consultants during the course of the process and presents an informed opinion of the environmental impacts associated with the proposed project. The following conclusions can be drawn from the specialist studies undertaken within this Basic Assessment:

Alternative 1:

Impacts on Ecology: The impacts associated with the grid connection would be relatively low given the modest footprint of the required lines. Alternative 1 to the Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar Capital substation) is identified as the preferred option from a terrestrial ecology perspective, but if the avifaunal study indicates that one of the other options is preferred, then this would also be considered acceptable as it is important to minimise the overall impact of the line.

Impacts on avifauna: Unfortunately the presence of a Verreaux's Eagle breeding site approximately 350 metres south of all three corridors is problematic. Alternative 1 to the northwest is not preferred as it will pass across the face of the escarpment, in an area where Verreaux's Eagles in particular are active. Alternative 2B is preferred.

Impacts on heritage sites: From the desktop assessment no fatal flaws were identified in the Power Line corridors. It is recommended that the preferred power line corridor is subjected to a heritage walk through when the pylon positions are determined and mitigation includes the micro adjustments of tower positions for the in situ preservation of sites. Neither alternative has preference in terms of social aspects over each other.

Visual impacts: Connects with the Ilanga Lethemba substation (Solar Capital Substation). This alignment has the potential to visually impact on residents of the *Jakkalsfontein* homestead and another unidentified homestead located near the Perseus-Hydra 2 400kV power line. It also traverses perpendicular to most of the power lines in the region, potentially exacerbating the potential visual impact.

Social impacts: Social impacts are expected during all phases of the development and are expected to be both positive and negative. Impacts are expected to be of low significance for the various issues. Due to the shorter length the social impacts associated with Alternative 1 are likely to be lower than those associated with Alternative 2. **Alternative 1 is therefore the preferred alternative.**

Alternative 2A and 2B:

Impacts on ecology: The overall impact on ecological processes and functioning as a result of the construction and operation of the proposed power line is likely to be of low significance but higher than that expected for Alternative 1.

Impacts on avifauna: A Verreaux's Eagle breeding site is located approximately 350 metres south of all three corridors. It is recommended that the grid connection corridor rather be shifted further east to align with the existing Hydra Roodekuil 2 220kV power line, so as to be further from the nest, and to group linear infrastructure rather than splitting it in the landscape. It is not recommended that the corridor be moved more to the north or north-west as an additional two Verreaux's Eagle nests exist in that area (too far from turbines to be relevant to the Castle wind energy facility itself). **Therefore Alternative 2B is the preferred alternative.**

Impacts on heritage sites: From the desktop assessment no fatal flaws were identified in the Power Line corridors. It is recommended that the preferred power line corridor is subjected to a heritage walk through when the pylon positions are determined and mitigation includes the micro adjustments of tower positions for the in situ preservation of sites. Neither alternative has preference in terms of social aspects over each other.

Visual impacts: Alternative 2A and 2B connect with the Hydra substation south-west of the wind energy facility. It is slightly lengthier than Alternative 1, but generally follows the existing larger power line infrastructure to the Hydra substation. Potential visual impacts related to Alternative 2 include the section where the alignment traverses near the Slingershoek homestead. Utilising the 2B sub-alternative in conjunction with the Alternative 2 would mitigated this impact considerably, provided the 2B sub-alternative is constructed below the escarpment and not along elevated terrain.

Social: Based on the findings of the Social Impact Assessment the social impacts associated with Alternative 1 and 2 will be low negative. However, due to the shorter length the social impacts associated with Alternative 1 are likely to be lower than those associated with Alternative 2. Alternative 1 is therefore the preferred alternative.

Preferred alternative: Based on the specialist recommendation **Route Alternative 2B** is preferred for implementation.

Overall conclusion and recommended preferred alternative

Based on the findings of the studies undertaken, in terms of environmental constraints and opportunities identified through the Environmental Basic Assessment process, no environmental fatal flaws were identified to be associated with the construction of a proposed 132kV power line

along either alternative. The significance levels of the majority of identified negative impacts can generally be reduced to acceptable levels by implementing the recommended mitigation measures. With reference to the information available at this planning approval stage in the project cycle, the confidence in the environmental assessment undertaken is regarded as acceptable.

Considering the alternatives assessed, the environmentally preferred alternative would be Alternative 2B, but since the overall preferred point of connection will be determined by Eskom alternatives 1 and 2B need to be authorised to allow for a connection to both potential substation. This recommendation is based on the following (refer to Table 4):

- » Utilising the 2B sub-alternative in conjunction with the Alternative 2 would mitigated this impact considerably, provided the 2B sub-alternative is constructed below the escarpment and not along elevated terrain. Length of the power line – a shorter power line length will minimise the impacts associated with the infrastructure through minimising the footprint of the development.
- » Alternative 2B grid connection corridor can be shifted further east to align with the existing Hydra Roodekuil 2 220kV power line, so as to be further from the nest, and to group linear infrastructure rather than splitting it in the landscape.

Therefore, it is recommended that the project should be authorised. However, a number of issues requiring mitigation have been highlighted in the impact assessment **(Appendix F)**. In response to these potential environmental impacts, environmental specifications for the management of these issues / impacts are detailed within the draft Environmental Management Programme (EMPr) included within **Appendix G**.

No-go alternative (compulsory)

The 'do-nothing' alternative is the option of not constructing the 132kV power line within the servitude corridor proposed. This option will result in no impacts occurring on the biophysical environment (i.e. biodiversity, soils), and will result in no visual impact. However, this will result in the situation where the Castle Wind Energy Facility cannot be connected to the electricity grid. This is not considered desirable as it would compromise the objectives of the Emthanjeni Local Municipality IDP and LED to create employment and support economic development.

The do nothing alterative for the power line will result in a lost opportunity for renewable energy production within the country, and will impact on the local community as a community trust is to be established during the operational phase of the wind energy facility project. **The 'Do nothing' alternative is, therefore, not a preferred alternative.**

Table 4:Comparison of Alternatives

Environmental	Alternative 1	Alternative 2	
Aspect	Technically preferred alternative: 1	Alternative: 2A	Environmentally preferred
			Alternative: 2B
Ecology	The impacts associated with the grid connection	The overall impact on ecological	The overall impact on ecological
	would be relatively low given the modest	processes and functioning as a result	processes and functioning as a result
	footprint of the required lines. Alternative 1 to	of the construction and operation of	of the construction and operation of
	the Ilanga Lethemba Substation (Solar	the proposed power line is likely to	the proposed power line is likely to
	Capital substation) is identified as the	be of low significance but higher	be of low significance but higher
	preferred option from a terrestrial ecology	than that expected for Alternative 1.	than that expected for Alternative 1.
	perspective, but if the avifaunal study indicates		
	that one of the other options is preferred, then		
	this would also be considered acceptable as it is		
	important to minimise the overall impact of the		
	line.		
Avifauna	The presence of a Verreaux's Eagle breeding site	The presence of a Verreaux's Eagle	The presence of a Verreaux's Eagle
	approximately 350 metres south of all four	breeding site approximately 350	breeding site approximately 350
	corridors is problematic, therefore this	metres south of all four corridors is	metres south of all four corridors is
	additional babitat disturbance to bird species	problematic, therefore this	problematic. Alternative 2B grid
		would croste additional babitat	further east to align with the existing
		disturbance to hird species	"Hydra Poodekuil 2" 220kV power
			line so as to be further from the
			nest and to group linear
			infrastructure rather than splitting it
			in the landscape
Heritage	From the desktop assessment no fatal flaws	From the desktop assessment no	From the desktop assessment no
	were identified in the Power Line corridors. It is	fatal flaws were identified in the	fatal flaws were identified in the

Environmental	Alternative 1	Alternative 2	
Aspect	Technically preferred alternative: 1	Alternative: 2A	Environmentally preferred
			Alternative: 2B
	recommended that the preferred power line	Power Line corridors. It is	Power Line corridors. It is
	corridor is subjected to a heritage walk through	recommended that the preferred	recommended that the preferred
	when the pylon positions are determined and	power line corridor is subjected to a	power line corridor is subjected to a
	mitigation includes the micro adjustments of	heritage walk through when the	heritage walk through when the
	tower positions for the in situ preservation of	pylon positions are determined and	pylon positions are determined and
	sites. Neither alternative has preference in terms	mitigation includes the micro	mitigation includes the micro
	of social aspects over each other.	adjustments of tower positions for	adjustments of tower positions for
		the in situ preservation of sites.	the in situ preservation of sites.
		Neither alternative has preference in	Neither alternative has preference in
		terms of social aspects over each	terms of social aspects over each
		other.	other.
Visual	This route alternative has the potential to	Alternative 2, 2A and 2B connect	Potential visual impacts related to
	visually impact on residents of the Jakkalsfontein	with the Hydra substation south-	Alternative 2 include the section
	homestead and another unidentified homestead	west of the wind energy facility. It is	where the alignment traverses near
	located near the Perseus-Hydra 2 400kV power	slightly lengthier than Alternative 1,	the Slingershoek homestead.
	line. It also traverses perpendicular to most of	but generally follows the existing	Utilising the 2B sub-alternative in
	the power lines in the region, potentially	larger power line infrastructure to	conjunction with the Alternative 2
	exacerbating the potential visual impact.	the Hydra substation. Potential	would mitigate this impact
		visual impacts related to Alternative	considerably, provided the 2B sub-
		2 include the section where the	alternative is constructed below the
		alignment traverses near the	escarpment and not along elevated
		Slingershoek homestead. Utilising	terrain.
		the 2B sub-alternative in conjunction	
		with the Alternative 2 would	
		mitigated this impact considerably,	
		provided the 2B sub-alternative is	
		constructed below the escarpment	

Environmental	Alternative 1	Alternative 2		
Aspect	Technically preferred alternative: 1	Alternative: 2A	Environmentally preferred	
			Alternative: 2B	
		and not along elevated terrain. This		
		alternative is not favoured.		

SECTION E: RECOMMENDATION OF PRACTITIONER

Is the information contained in this report and the documentation attached hereto sufficient to make a decision in respect of the activity applied for (in the view of the environmental assessment practitioner)?

YES x NO

If "NO", indicate the aspects that should be assessed further as part of a Scoping and EIA process before a decision can be made (list the aspects that require further assessment).

If "YES", please list any recommended conditions, including mitigation measures that should be considered for inclusion in any authorisation that may be granted by the competent authority in respect of the application.

There are no environmental or social impacts of high significance that would prevent the establishment of the proposed 132kV power line associated with the Castle Wind Energy Facility. The point of connection is dependent on where Eskom states capacity is available and thus both options 1 and 2 are requested, of the options 2A and 2B the preferred alternative is Alternative 2B,

The construction of the proposed power line should be implemented according to the EMPr to adequately mitigate and manage potential impacts associated with construction activities. The construction activities and relevant rehabilitation of disturbed areas should be monitored against the approved EMPr, the Environmental Authorisation and all other relevant environmental legislation. The following measures should be considered for inclusion within the Environmental Authorisation.

Design, Construction, and Decommissioning Phases:

The mitigation and management measures previously listed in this Basic Assessment Report should be implemented in order to minimise potential environmental impacts. The following mitigation measures should also be implemented.

- An independent Environmental Control Officer (ECO) should be appointed to monitor compliance with the specifications of the EMPr for the duration of the construction period. This ECO can be the same individual appointed to monitor construction of the wind energy facility.
- Once a power line route has been negotiated and surveyed within the identified corridor, **»** walk-through surveys should be undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist, heritage specialist and ornithologist. Specific recommendations made by these specialists should be fed into the project EMPr and considered within the design of the power line.
- During construction, unnecessary disturbance to habitats should be strictly controlled and the footprint of the impact should be kept to a minimum.
- Existing tracks/roads should be used as far as possible, and construction activities should be **»** limited to the authorised site. Any new access roads required to be carefully planned and constructed to minimise the impacted area and prevent unnecessary degradation of soil.

- » If concentrations of archaeological heritage material, human remains or fossil material are uncovered, all work <u>in that immediate vicinity</u> must cease immediately and be reported to SAHRA so that systematic and professional investigation/ excavation can be undertaken.
- » Plan the placement of lay-down areas and any potential temporary construction camps in order to minimise vegetation clearing wherever possible.
- » Restrict the activities and movement of construction workers and vehicles to the immediate construction site and existing access roads.
- » Reduce and control construction dust through the use of approved dust suppression techniques as and when required (i.e. whenever dust becomes apparent).
- » Rehabilitate all disturbed areas, construction areas, roads, slopes etc. immediately after the completion of construction works. If necessary, an ecologist should be consulted to assist or give input into rehabilitation specifications.
- » Consideration should be given to abbreviating maintenance times, scheduling activities in relation to avian breeding and/or movement schedules and lowering levels of associated noise.
- » Local community members should be provided an opportunity to be included in a list of possible local suppliers and service providers.
- The Environmental Management Programme (EMPr) as contained within Appendix G of this report should form part of the contract with the Contractors appointed to construct and maintain the proposed power line, and will be used to ensure compliance with environmental specifications and management measures. The implementation of this EMPr for all life cycle phases of the project is considered to be key in achieving the appropriate environmental management standards as detailed for this project.

Operational Phase:

The mitigation and management measures previously listed in this Basic Assessment Report should be implemented in order to minimise potential environmental impacts. The following mitigation measures should also be implemented.

- » Maintain the general appearance of the power line servitude as a whole, including the turbine structures, the internal roads, servitudes and the ancillary buildings.
- » Maintain roads to forego erosion and to suppress dust.

Based on the conclusions of the Basic Assessment, it is recommended that the proposed construction of the power line and associated infrastructure be authorised subject to compliance with the recommendations and mitigation measures proposed in this report.

Is an EMPr attached?

YES x

The EMPr must be attached as **Appendix G**.

The details of the EAP who compiled the BAR and the expertise of the EAP to perform the Basic Assessment process must be included as **Appendix H**.

If any specialist reports were used during the compilation of this BAR, please attach the declaration of interest for each specialist in **Appendix I**.

Any other information relevant to this application and not previously included must be attached in **Appendix J**.

NAME OF EAP

SIGNATURE OF EAP

DATE

SECTION F: APPENDICES

The following appendixes must be attached:

- Appendix A: Maps
- Appendix B: Photographs
- Appendix C: Facility illustration(s)
- Appendix D: Specialist reports (including terms of reference)
- Appendix E: Public Participation
- Appendix F: Impact Assessment
- Appendix G: Environmental Management Programme (EMPr)
- Appendix H: Details of EAP and expertise
- Appendix I: Specialist's declaration of interest
- Appendix J: Additional Information